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Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and any exhibits to this Report may contain “forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “will,” “should” and similar expressions, as
they relate to us, are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements reflect management’s current beliefs, assumptions and
expectations and are subject to a number of factors that may cause actual results to differ materially. These factors include but are not limited to:
the risk that we will not realize all of the anticipated benefits from our 2007 acquisition of Global Imaging Systems, Inc.; the risk that unexpected
costs will be incurred; the outcome of litigation and regulatory proceedings to which we may be a party; actions of competitors; changes and
developments affecting our industry; quarterly or cyclical variations in financial results; development of new products and services; interest rates
and cost of borrowing; our ability to protect our intellectual property rights; our ability to maintain and improve cost efficiency of operations; changes
in foreign currency exchange rates; changes in economic conditions, political conditions, trade protection measures, licensing requirements and
tax matters in the foreign countries in which we do business; reliance on third parties for manufacturing of products and provision of services and
other risks that are set forth in the “Risk Factors” section, the “Legal Proceedings” section, the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” section and other sections of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and our 2007 Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The company
assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements as a result of new information or future events or developments, except as
required by law.
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Item 1

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION
XEROX CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,  

(in millions, except per-share data)   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Revenues       

Sales   $ 2,119  $ 1,976  $4,132  $3,683 
Service, outsourcing and rentals    2,207   2,027   4,320   3,951 
Finance income    207   205   416   410 

        
 

   
 

   
 

Total Revenues    4,533   4,208   8,868   8,044 
        

 
   

 
   

 

Costs and Expenses       
Cost of sales    1,400   1,286   2,719   2,370 
Cost of service, outsourcing and rentals    1,275   1,148   2,506   2,266 
Equipment financing interest    79   79   159   157 
Research, development and engineering expenses    223   223   444   441 
Selling, administrative and general expenses    1,170   1,081   2,294   2,035 
Restructuring and asset impairment charges    63   (2)  66   (4)
Provision for litigation, net    —   —   795   — 
Other expenses, net    78   78   158   135 

        
 

   
 

   
 

Total Costs and Expenses    4,288   3,893   9,141   7,400 
        

 
   

 
   

 

Income (Loss) before Income Taxes and Equity Income    245   315   (273)  644 
Income tax expense (benefit)    59   76   (187)  178 
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates    29   27   57   33 

        
 

   
 

   
 

Net Income (Loss)   $ 215  $ 266  $ (29) $ 499 
        

 

   

 

   

 

Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share   $ 0.24  $ 0.28  $ (0.03) $ 0.53 
Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share   $ 0.24  $ 0.28  $ (0.03) $ 0.52 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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XEROX CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)

 

(in millions, except share data in thousands)   

June 30,
2008   

December 31,
2007  

Assets    
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 843  $ 1,099 
Accounts receivable, net    2,598   2,457 
Billed portion of finance receivables, net    287   304 
Finance receivables, net    2,657   2,693 
Inventories    1,436   1,305 
Other current assets    967   682 

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    8,788   8,540 
Finance receivables due after one year, net    4,961   5,051 
Equipment on operating leases, net    629   587 
Land, buildings and equipment, net    1,597   1,587 
Investments in affiliates, at equity    994   932 
Intangible assets, net    624   621 
Goodwill    3,591   3,448 
Deferred tax assets, long-term    1,599   1,349 
Other long-term assets    1,529   1,428 

    
 

   
 

Total Assets   $ 24,312  $ 23,543 
    

 

   

 

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity    
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt   $ 1,218  $ 525 
Accounts payable    1,326   1,367 
Accrued compensation and benefits costs    573   673 
Other current liabilities    2,449   1,512 

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    5,566   4,077 
Long-term debt    6,730   6,939 
Liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities    636   632 
Pension and other benefit liabilities    1,190   1,115 
Post-retirement medical benefits    1,390   1,396 
Other long-term liabilities    846   796 

    
 

   
 

Total Liabilities    16,358   14,955 
    

 
   

 

Common stock, including additional paid-in-capital    3,678   4,096 
Treasury stock, at cost    (313)  (31)
Retained earnings    5,157   5,288 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (568)  (765)

    
 

   
 

Total Shareholders’ Equity    7,954   8,588 
    

 
   

 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   $ 24,312  $ 23,543 
    

 

   

 

Shares of common stock issued    894,792   919,013 
Treasury stock    (22,558)  (1,836)

    
 

   
 

Shares of common stock outstanding    872,234   917,177 
    

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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XEROX CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,  

(in millions)   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:      
Net income (loss)   $ 215  $ 266  $ (29) $ 499 
Adjustments required to reconcile net income (loss) to cash flows from operating activities:      

Depreciation and amortization    178   162   323   314 
Provisions for receivables and inventory    59   58   108   94 
Net gain on sales of businesses and assets    (15)  —   (22)  (4)
Undistributed equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates    (2)  (13)  (29)  (18)
Stock-based compensation    20   18   40   35 
Provision for litigation, net    —   —   795   — 
Restructuring and asset impairment charges    63   (2)  66   (4)
Cash payments for restructurings    (22)  (60)  (59)  (134)
Contributions to pension benefit plans    (31)  (27)  (66)  (55)
Increase in inventories    (36)  (22)  (165)  (160)
Increase in equipment on operating leases    (84)  (76)  (161)  (145)
Decrease in finance receivables    96   82   220   220 
Increase in accounts receivable and billed portion of finance receivables    (40)  (89)  (68)  (116)
Decrease (increase) in other current and long-term assets    28   58   (6)  54 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued compensation    40   11   (143)  (73)
Net change in income tax assets and liabilities    13   49   (287)  143 
Net change in derivative assets and liabilities    (13)  (26)  10   (24)
(Decrease) increase in other current and long-term liabilities    (24)  5   (47)  (27)
Other, net    (3)  (6)  14   (24)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    442   388   494   575 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:      
Cost of additions to land, buildings and equipment    (55)  (56)  (99)  (108)
Proceeds from sales of land, buildings and equipment    27   2   36   6 
Cost of additions to internal use software    (33)  (25)  (60)  (54)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired    (138)  (1,530)  (142)  (1,530)
Net change in escrow and other restricted investments    (138)  19   (137)  40 
Other, net    52   46   52   118 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (285)  (1,544)  (350)  (1,528)
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:      
Net debt payments on secured financings    (59)  (178)  (147)  (374)
Net cash proceeds on other debt    325   1,009   571   996 
Common stock dividends    (39)  —   (79)  — 
Proceeds from issuances of common stock    1   19   4   51 
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    —   6   1   18 
Payments to acquire treasury stock, including fees    (377)  (64)  (712)  (289)
Repurchases related to stock-based compensation    (1)  —   (33)  — 
Other    (4)  (15)  (9)  (15)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (154)  777   (404)  387 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    (2)  11   4   17 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    1   (368)  (256)  (549)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    842   1,218   1,099   1,399 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 843  $ 850  $ 843  $ 850 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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XEROX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in millions, except per-share data and where otherwise noted)

Note 1-Basis of Presentation
References herein to “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company” and “Xerox” refer to Xerox Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries unless the

context specifically requires otherwise.

We have prepared the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the accounting policies
described in our 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders, which is incorporated by reference in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K (“2007 Annual
Report”), and the interim reporting requirements of Form 10-Q. Accordingly, certain information and note disclosures normally included in our
annual financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been
condensed or omitted. You should read these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in our 2007 Annual Report.

In our opinion, all adjustments which are necessary for a fair statement of financial position, operating results and cash flows for the interim
periods presented have been made. Interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results of the full year.

For convenience and ease of reference, we refer to the financial statement caption “Income (Loss) before Income Taxes and Equity Income”
as “pre-tax income (loss).”

Note 2-Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities:

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161 “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133”. The new standard requires additional disclosures regarding a company’s derivative instruments and hedging activities by
requiring disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a tabular format. It also requires disclosure of
derivative features that are credit risk–related as well as cross-referencing within the notes to the financial statements to enable financial statement
users to locate important information about derivative instruments, financial performance and cash flows. The standard is effective for our fiscal
year and interim periods within such year, beginning January 1, 2009, with early application encouraged. The principal impact from this standard
will be to require us to expand our disclosures regarding our derivative instruments.

Business Combinations and Noncontrolling Interests:
In 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“FAS 141(R)”). FAS 141(R) requires the acquiring entity

in a business combination to recognize the full fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction (whether a full or partial
acquisition); establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed; requires
expensing of most transaction and restructuring costs; and requires the acquirer to disclose the information needed to evaluate and understand the
nature and financial effect of the business combination. FAS 141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after January 1, 2009. The impact of FAS No. 141(R) on our consolidated financial statements will depend upon the nature, terms and size
of the acquisitions we consummate after the effective date.

In 2007, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 51” (“FAS 160”). FAS 160 requires reporting entities to present noncontrolling (minority) interests as equity (as opposed to
as a liability) and provides guidance on the accounting for transactions between an entity and noncontrolling interests. As of June 30, 2008, we had
approximately $114 in noncontrolling interests classified in other long-term liabilities. FAS 160 applies prospectively as of January 1, 2009, except
for the presentation and disclosure requirements which will be applied retrospectively for all periods presented.
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Benefit Plans Accounting:
In 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an

amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)” (“FAS 158”). The funded status recognition and certain disclosure provisions of FAS
158 were effective as of our fiscal year ending December 31, 2006. FAS 158 also required the consistent measurement of plan assets and benefit
obligations as of the date of our fiscal year-end statement of financial position effective for the year ending December 31, 2008. Since several of
our international plans had a September 30th measurement date, this standard required us to change that measurement date for those plans to
December 31st in 2008. The adoption of this requirement by our international plans did not have a material effect on our financial condition or
results of operations. The effect of adoption resulted in a January 1, 2008 opening retained earnings charge of $16, deferred tax asset increase of
$4, pension asset reduction of $9, a pension liability increase of $6 and a credit to accumulated other comprehensive loss of $5.

In March 2007, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF Issue No. 06-10, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF 06-10”). EITF 06-10 provides that an
employer should recognize a liability for the postretirement benefit related to collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangements in
accordance with either SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” or Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion.” We recorded a $11 after-tax charge to retained earnings in 2008 reflecting the cumulative effect upon adoption
of EITF 06-10. The standard is not expected to have a material impact on results of operations in the future.

Fair Value Accounting:
We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“FAS 157”) on January 1, 2008. FAS 157 defines fair value,

establishes a market-based framework or hierarchy for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. FAS 157 is
applicable whenever another accounting pronouncement requires or permits assets and liabilities to be measured at fair value. FAS 157 does not
expand or require any new fair value measures; however, the application of this statement may change current practice. In February 2008, the
FASB decided that an entity need not apply this standard to nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a nonrecurring basis until 2009. Accordingly, our adoption of this standard in 2008 was limited to financial assets and
liabilities, which primarily affects the valuation of our derivative contracts. The adoption of FAS 157 did not have a material effect on our financial
condition or results of operations. We are still in the process of evaluating this standard with respect to its effect on nonfinancial assets and
liabilities and therefore have not yet determined the impact that it will have on our financial statements upon full adoption in 2009. Nonfinancial
assets and liabilities for which we have not applied the provisions of FAS 157 include those measured at fair value in impairment testing and those
initially measured at fair value in a business combination.

SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”
(“FAS 159”) became effective on January 1, 2008. FAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value. Entities that elect the fair value option will report unrealized gains and losses in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.
The fair value option may be elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis, with few exceptions. FAS 159 also establishes presentation and
disclosure requirements to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different measurement attributes for similar assets and liabilities.
FAS 159 did not have an effect on our financial condition or results of operations as we did not elect this fair value option, nor is it expected to have
a material impact on future periods as the election of this option for our financial instruments is expected to be limited.

Other:
In April 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of Useful Life of Intangible Assets” (“FSP FAS 142-3”). FSP FAS

142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” FSP FAS 142-3 also requires expanded
disclosures related to the determination of intangible asset useful lives. This standard applies prospectively to intangible assets
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acquired and/or recognized on or after January 1, 2009. We do not believe that the adoption of this standard will have a material effect on our
financial condition or results of operations.

Note 3-Segment Reporting
Our reportable segments are consistent with how we manage the business and view the markets we serve. Our reportable segments are

Production, Office and Other. The Production and Office segments are centered around strategic product groups which share common technology,
manufacturing and product platforms, as well as classes of customers.

The Production segment includes black-and-white products which operate at speeds over 90 pages per minute (“ppm”) excluding 95 ppm
with an embedded controller and color products which operate at speeds over 40 ppm excluding 50, 60 and 70 ppm products with an embedded
controller. Products include the Xerox iGen3® digital color production press, Xerox Nuvera®, DocuTech®, DocuPrint® and DocuColor® families, as
well as older technology light-lens products. These products are sold predominantly through direct sales channels to Fortune 1000, graphic arts,
government, education and other public sector customers.

The Office segment includes black-and-white products which operate at speeds up to 90 ppm as well as 95 ppm with an embedded
controller and color products up to 40 ppm as well as 50, 60 and 70 ppm products with an embedded controller. Products include the suite of
CopyCentre®, WorkCentre®, WorkCentre Pro and Phaser® digital multifunction systems, DocuColor color multifunction products, color laser, solid
ink color printers and multifunction devices, monochrome laser desktop printers, digital and light-lens copiers and facsimile products and non-
Xerox branded products with similar specifications. These products are sold through direct and indirect sales channels to global, national and mid-
size commercial customers as well as government, education and other public sector customers. Approximately 75% of Global Imaging Systems’
(“GIS”) revenue is included in our Office segment representing those sales and services that align to our Office segment.

The segment classified as Other includes several units, none of which met the thresholds for separate segment reporting. This group
primarily includes Xerox Supplies Business Group (predominantly paper sales), value-added services, Wide Format Systems, Xerox Technology
Enterprises, royalty and licensing revenues, GIS network integration solutions and electronic presentation systems, equity net income and non-
allocated Corporate items. Value-added services includes the results of our acquisitions of Amici LLC (now Xerox Litigation Services) and
Advectis®, Inc. (now Xerox Mortgage Services). Other segment profit (loss) includes the operating results from these entities, other less significant
businesses, our equity income from Fuji Xerox, and certain costs which have not been allocated to the Production and Office segments, including
non-financing interest as well as other items included in Other expenses, net.

Operating segment revenues and profitability for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
 
   Production  Office   Other  Total
2008        
Total Segment revenues   $ 1,337  $2,526  $ 670  $4,533

            

 

   

Segment profit (loss)   $ 87  $ 279  $ (16) $ 350
            

 

   

2007        
Total Segment revenues   $ 1,281  $2,327  $ 600  $4,208

            

 

   

Segment profit (loss)   $ 111  $ 267  $ (31) $ 347
            

 

   

Operating segment revenues and profitability for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
 
   Production  Office   Other   Total
2008        
Total Segment revenues   $ 2,608  $4,973  $1,287  $8,868

            

 

   

Segment profit (loss)   $ 188  $ 544  $ (56) $ 676
            

 

   

2007        
Total Segment revenues   $ 2,475  $4,432  $1,137  $8,044

            

 

   

Segment profit (loss)   $ 230  $ 526  $ (47) $ 709
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The following is a reconciliation to pre-tax income (loss):
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,  

   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Total Segment profit   $  350  $  347  $ 676  $  709 
Reconciling items:      

Restructuring and asset impairment charges    (63)   2   (66)   4 
Provision for litigation, net    —   —   (795)   — 
Restructuring charges of Fuji Xerox    (3)   —   (13)   (23)
Other    (10)   (7)  (18)   (13)
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates    (29)   (27)  (57)   (33)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Pre-tax income (loss)   $ 245  $ 315  $ (273)  $ 644 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

In the first quarter of 2008, we revised our segment reporting to integrate our former Developing Market Operations (DMO) segment into the
Production, Office and Other segments. DMO is a collection of geographic regions which have matured to a level where we now manage them
consistent with our North American and European geographic regions, which is on the basis of products sold. The following table provides
segment revenue and operating profit for the 2007 quarterly periods reclassified to conform to our new reportable segments:
 
   Three Months Ended  
   Mar. 31  Jun. 30  Sep. 30  Dec. 31  Total  
Segment Revenue:       
Production   $ 1,194  $ 1,281  $ 1,286  $ 1,554  $ 5,315 
Office    2,105   2,327   2,384   2,657   9,473 
Other    537   600   632   671   2,440 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total   $ 3,836  $ 4,208  $ 4,302  $ 4,882  $17,228 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Segment Profit / (Loss):       
Production   $ 119  $ 111  $ 126  $ 206  $ 562 
Office    259   267   259   330   1,115 
Other    (16)  (31)  (25)  (17)  (89)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total   $ 362  $ 347  $ 360  $ 519  $ 1,588 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Note 4 – Acquisitions
Veenman B.V.:

In June 2008, we acquired Veenman B.V. (“Veenman”), expanding our reach into the small and mid-sized business market in the
Netherlands, for approximately $69 (€44 million) in cash, including transaction costs. Veenman is the Netherlands’ leading independent distributor
of office printers, copiers and multifunction devices serving small and mid-size businesses. The operating results of Veenman are not material to
our financial statements, and are included within our Office segment from the date of acquisition. The purchase price is expected to be primarily
allocated to intangible assets and goodwill and will be based on third-party valuations and management’s estimates which have not yet been
finalized.

Saxon Business Systems:
In May 2008, GIS acquired Saxon Business Systems (“Saxon”), an office equipment supplier in Florida, for approximately $69 in cash,

including transaction costs. The acquisition continues GIS’s development of a national network of office technology suppliers to serve its expanding
base of small and mid-size businesses. The operating results of Saxon are not material to our financial statements, and are included within our
Office segment
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from the date of acquisition. The purchase price is expected to be primarily allocated to intangible assets and goodwill and will be based on third-
party valuations and management’s estimates which have not yet been finalized.

Global Imaging Systems, Inc.:
In May 2007, we acquired Global Imaging Systems, Inc., a provider of office technology for small and mid-size businesses in the United

States, for approximately $1.5 billion. The results of operations for GIS are included in our Consolidated Statements of Income as of May 9, 2007,
the effective date of acquisition. Refer to Note 3-Segment Reporting for a discussion of the segment classification of GIS.

The unaudited pro forma results presented below include the effects of the GIS acquisition as if it had been consummated as of January 1,
2007. The pro forma results include the amortization associated with the estimated value of acquired intangible assets and interest expense
associated with debt used to fund the acquisition. Pro forma results, however, do not include any synergies or other expected benefits of the
acquisition. Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma financial information below is not necessarily indicative of either future results of operations or
results that might have been achieved had the acquisition been consummated as of January 1, 2007.
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,

2007   

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2007
Revenue   $ 4,305  $ 8,435
Net income    266   503
Basic earnings per share    0.28   0.53
Diluted earnings per share    0.28   0.52

Note 5-Inventories
The following is a summary of Inventories by major category:

 

   

June 30,
2008   

December 31,
2007

Finished goods   $ 1,204  $ 1,099
Work-in-process    75   70
Raw materials    157   136

        

Total Inventories   $ 1,436  $ 1,305
        

Note 6-Investment in Fuji Xerox and Other Unconsolidated Affiliates
Our equity in net income of our unconsolidated affiliates was as follows:

 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,

   2008   2007   2008   2007
Fuji Xerox   $ 26  $ 25  $ 52  $ 30
Other investments    3   2   5   3

                

Total   $ 29  $ 27  $ 57  $ 33
                

Condensed financial data of Fuji Xerox was as follows:
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,

   2008   2007   2008   2007
Summary of Operations         
Revenues   $ 2,671  $ 2,353  $ 5,704  $ 5,003
Costs and Expenses    2,451   2,192   5,273   4,770

                

Income before income taxes    220   161   431   233
Income taxes    83   55   166   89
Minorities’ interests    2   1   4   3

                

Net income   $ 135  $ 105  $ 261  $ 141
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Equity in net income of Fuji Xerox is affected by certain adjustments to reflect the deferral of profit associated with intercompany sales. These
adjustments may result in recorded equity income that is different from that implied by our 25% ownership interest. The six months ended June 30,
2007 include after-tax restructuring charges of $23. The six months ended June 30, 2008 include after-tax charges of $13 primarily related to
pension settlements associated with Fuji Xerox’s 2007 restructuring.

Note 7-Restructuring Programs
Information related to restructuring program activity during the six months ended June 30, 2008 is outlined below.

 

   

Severance and
Related Costs   

Lease
Cancellation

and Other
Costs   Total  

Balance December 31, 2007   $ 71  $ 38  $ 109 
Restructuring provision    65   2   67 
Reversals of prior accruals    (1)  —   (1)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net current period charges(1)    64   2   66 
Charges against reserve and currency    (39)  (17)  (56)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Balance June 30, 2008   $ 96  $ 23  $ 119 
    

 

   

 

   

 

 
(1) Represents net amount recognized within the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the period shown.

Reconciliation to the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,  

   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Charges to reserve, all programs   $ (21)  $ (56) $ (56)  $ (130)
Asset impairments    —   —   —   1 
Effects of foreign currency and other non-cash    (1)   (4)  (3)   (5)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Cash payments for restructurings   $ (22)  $ (60) $ (59)  $ (134)
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

During 2008, we provided an additional net provision of $66 for ongoing restructuring programs predominantly consisting of severance and
costs related to the elimination of approximately 1,200 positions, primarily in North America. About two-thirds of these restructuring charges are
associated with initiatives focused on improving gross margin and the remainder are primarily focused on reducing general and administrative
expenses.

The following table summarizes the total amount of costs incurred in connection with these restructuring programs by segment:
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,  

   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Production   $ 28  $ (1) $ 29  $ (4)
Office    27   —   29   2 
Other    8   (1)  8   (2)

        
 

       
 

Total net charges   $ 63  $ (2) $ 66  $ (4)
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We expect to incur additional restructuring charges in 2008 of approximately $14 related to initiatives identified to date that have not yet been
recognized in the financial statements as well as expected interest accretion on the reserve.

Note 8-Debt
In February 2008, we exercised our right under our $2.0 billion Credit Facility to request a one-year extension of the maturity date of the

Credit Facility. Lenders representing approximately $1.4 billion (or approximately 70%) of commitments under the Credit Facility agreed to the
extension and the portion represented by these Lenders now has a maturity date of April 30, 2013, with the remaining portion of the Credit Facility
to mature on April 30, 2012.

In April 2008, we issued $400 of 5.65% senior notes due 2013 (the “2013 Senior Notes”) at 99.996 percent of par and $1.0 billion of 6.35%
senior notes due 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes”) at 99.856 percent of par, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $1,390. The 2013 Senior
Notes accrue interest at the rate of 5.65% per annum, payable semiannually, and as a result of the discount, have a weighted average effective
interest rate of 5.65%. The 2018 Senior Notes accrue interest at the rate of 6.35% per annum, payable semiannually, and as a result of the
discount, have a weighted average effective interest rate of 6.37%. Debt issuance costs of approximately $10 were deferred. The 2013 Senior
Notes and 2018 Senior Notes are subordinated to our secured indebtedness and rank equally with our other existing senior unsecured
indebtedness. Proceeds from the offering were used to repay borrowings under the Credit Facility and for general corporate purposes.

Note 9-Interest Expense and Income
Interest expense and interest income were as follows:

 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,

   2008   2007   2008   2007
Interest expense(1)   $ 144  $ 149  $ 278  $ 285
Interest income(2)    216   219   437   441
 
(1) Includes Equipment financing interest, as well as non-financing interest expense that is included in Other expenses, net in the Condensed

Consolidated Statements of Income.
 
(2) Includes Finance income, as well as other interest income that is included in Other expenses, net in the Condensed Consolidated

Statements of Income.
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Note 10-Fair Value Measurement
As discussed in Note 2, we adopted FAS 157 on January 1, 2008, which among other things, requires enhanced disclosures about assets

and liabilities measured at fair value. Our adoption of FAS 157 was limited to financial assets and liabilities, which primarily relate to our derivative
contracts.

FAS 157 includes a fair value hierarchy that is intended to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related
disclosures. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on market data obtained
from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect a reporting entity’s pricing based upon their own market assumptions.

The fair value hierarchy consists of the following three levels:
 

Level 1  -  Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2

  

-

  

Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active market, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable and market-corroborated inputs
which are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3  -  Inputs are derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or value drivers are unobservable.

The following table represents our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2008 and the basis for that
measurement:
 

   

Total
Fair Value

Measurement
June 30, 2008  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Asset
(Level 1)   

Significant Other
Observable

Inputs (Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
Derivative Assets   $ 29  $ —  $ 29  $ —

                

Derivative Liabilities   $ 41  $ —  $ 41  $ —
                

We utilize the market approach to measure fair value for our derivative assets and liabilities. The market approach uses pricing models that
rely on market observable inputs such as yield curves, currency exchange rates and forward prices, and therefore are classified as Level 2.

Note 11-Employee Benefit Plans
The components of Net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in Other comprehensive income were as follows:

 

   

Three Months Ended
June 30,   Six Months Ended June 30,  

   

Pension
Benefits   

Retiree
Health   

Pension
Benefits   

Retiree
Health  

   2008   2007   2008  2007  2008   2007   2008  2007 
Net periodic benefit cost:          
Service cost   $ 52  $ 59  $ 4  $ 5  $ 107  $ 120  $ 8  $ 9 
Interest cost    144   129   23   21   288   257   45   43 
Expected return on plan assets    (166)  (151)  —   —   (331)  (300)  —   — 
Recognized net actuarial loss    9   19   —   2   19   37   1   5 
Amortization of prior service credit    (5)  (5)  (3)  (3)  (10)  (10)  (6)  (6)
Recognized settlement loss    3   4   —   —   11   12   —   — 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net periodic benefit cost   $ 37  $ 55  $ 24  $ 25  $ 84  $ 116  $ 48  $ 51 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in
Other comprehensive income:          

Amortization of net prior service credit    5   5   3   3   10   10   6   6 
Net actuarial losses    (12)  (23)  —   (2)  (30)  (49)  (1)  (5)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total recognized in Other comprehensive income(1)    (7)  (18)  3   1   (20)  (39)  5   1 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Total recognized in Net periodic benefit cost and Other comprehensive
income   $ 30  $ 37  $  27  $  26  $ 64  $ 77  $  53  $  52 

    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

 
(1) Amounts represent the pre-tax effect included within Other comprehensive income. The aggregate net of tax amounts were income of $2 and

$10 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, and are included as a component of “Other changes in plan assets and
benefit obligations,” within the table in Note 12 – “Comprehensive income.”
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During the six months ended June 30, 2008, we made contributions of $66 and $55 to our pension plans and our other post-retirement
benefit plans, respectively. We presently anticipate contributing an additional $69 to our pension plans and $50 to our other post-retirement benefit
plans in 2008 for a total of $135 for pension plans and $105 for other post-retirement benefit plans.

Note 12-Shareholders’ Equity
 

   

June 30,
2008   

December 31,
2007  

Common stock   $ 896  $ 920 
Additional paid-in-capital    2,782   3,176 
Treasury stock    (313)  (31)
Retained earnings    5,157   5,288 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (568)  (765)

    
 

   
 

Total Shareholders’ Equity   $ 7,954  $ 8,588 
    

 

   

 

We declared dividends of $39 and $38 in the first and second quarters of 2008, respectively. Additionally, we recorded opening retained
earnings charges of $16 and $11 related to the adoption of the FAS 158 and EITF No. 06-10, respectively. Refer to Note 2 for further information.

Treasury Stock:

The following is a summary of the purchases of common stock made during the six month period ending June 30, 2008 under our stock
repurchase programs as described in our 2007 Annual Report (shares in thousands):
 

   

Total Authorized Repurchase
Programs of $4,500**  

   Shares   Amount  
As of December 31, 2007   1,836  $ 31 
Purchases   49,136   712*
Less cancellations   (28,414)   (430)

   
 

   
 

Treasury stock as of June 30, 2008   22,558  $ 313 
   

 

   

 

 
* Includes associated fees of $1.
 

** Includes the July 2008 additional Board authorization of $1 billion of share repurchases.

Through June 30, 2008, we have repurchased a total of 186,388 shares at a cost of $2,846 (including associated fees of $4) under these
stock repurchase programs. In July 2008, 22,558 repurchased shares were cancelled upon the Board of Directors’ approval and were recorded as
a reduction to both Common stock of $23 and Additional paid-in-capital of $290.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (“AOCL”):

AOCL is composed of the following as of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively:
 

   

June 30,
2008   

December 31,
2007  

Income (Loss):    
Cumulative translation adjustments   $ 180  $ (31)
Benefit plans net actuarial losses and prior service credits (includes our share of Fuji Xerox) (1)    (749)  (735)
Other unrealized gains    1   1 

    
 

   
 

Total Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss   $ (568) $ (765)
    

 

   

 

 
(1) Includes a credit of $5 related to adoption of the FAS 158 requirements regarding the change in measurement date – refer to Note 2 for

further information.

Comprehensive income consists of:
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,  

   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Net Income (Loss)   $ 215  $ 266  $ (29)  $ 499 
Translation adjustments    (24)   170   211   203 
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations(1)    9   (6)  (19)   6 
Minimum pension liability    —   —   —   (44)
Other unrealized gains    3   —   —   — 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Comprehensive Income   $ 203  $ 430  $ 163  $ 664 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

 
(1) The 2008 amounts include currency impacts of $(2) and $(3) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, as well as our

share of Fuji Xerox of $9 and $(26) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively.

Note 13-Earnings per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock (shares in thousands):

 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,

   2008   2007   2008   2007
Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share:        
Net Income (Loss)   $ 215  $ 266  $ (29) $ 499

            

 

   

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding    889,791   938,916   900,189   942,317
            

 

   

Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share   $ 0.24  $ 0.28  $ (0.03) $ 0.53
            

 

   

Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share:        
Net Income (Loss)   $ 215  $ 266  $ (29) $ 499
Interest on Convertible Securities, net    —   1   —   1

            
 

   

Adjusted net income (loss) available to common shareholders   $ 215  $ 267  $ (29) $ 500
            

 

   

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding    889,791   938,916   900,189   942,317
Common shares issuable with respect to:        

Stock options    5,229   9,130   —   8,755
Restricted stock and performance shares    5,662   6,824   —   6,193
Convertible securities    1,992   1,992   —   1,992

            
 

   

Adjusted Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding    902,674   956,862   900,189   959,257
            

 

   

Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share   $ 0.24  $ 0.28  $ (0.03) $ 0.52
            

 

   

Dividends per Common Share   $ 0.0425  $ —  $ 0.085  $ —
            

 

   

The following securities were not included in the computation of diluted EPS for the six
months ended June 30, 2008 because of the net loss in the period and to do so
would have been anti-dilutive (in thousands of shares):        

Stock options        5,563  
Restricted stock and performance shares        5,163  
Convertible securities        1,992  

        
 

 

Total        12,718  
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Note 14-Contingencies
Brazil Tax and Labor Contingencies

Our Brazilian operations are involved in various litigation matters and have received or been the subject of numerous governmental
assessments related to indirect and other taxes as well as disputes associated with former employees and contract labor. The tax matters, which
comprise a significant portion of the total contingencies, principally relate to claims for taxes on the internal transfer of inventory, municipal service
taxes on rentals and gross revenue taxes. We are disputing these tax matters and intend to vigorously defend our positions. Based on the opinion
of legal counsel and current reserves for those matters deemed probable of loss, we do not believe that the ultimate resolution of these matters will
materially impact our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. The labor matters principally relate to claims made by former
employees and contract labor for the equivalent payment of all social security and other related labor benefits, as well as consequential tax claims,
as if they were regular employees. As of June 30, 2008, the total amounts related to the unreserved portion of the tax and labor contingencies,
inclusive of any related interest, amounted to $1,320 with the change from December 31, 2007 balance of $1,130 primarily related to indexation,
interest and currency. In connection with the above proceedings, customary local regulations may require us to make escrow cash deposits or post
other security of up to half of the total amount disputed. As of June 30, 2008 we had $233 held in escrow cash deposits for matters we are
disputing and there are liens on certain Brazilian assets with a net book value of $45 and additional letters of credit of $134. Generally, any
escrowed amounts would be refundable and any liens would be removed to the extent the matters are resolved in our favor. We routinely assess
these matters as to the probability of ultimately incurring a liability against our Brazilian operations and record our best estimate of the ultimate loss
in situations where we assess the likelihood of an ultimate loss as probable.

Legal Matters
As more fully discussed below, we are involved in a variety of claims, lawsuits, investigations and proceedings concerning securities law,

intellectual property law, environmental law, employment law and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”). We determine whether
an estimated loss from a contingency should be accrued by assessing whether a loss is deemed probable and can be reasonably estimated. We
assess our potential liability by analyzing our litigation and regulatory matters using available information. We develop our views on estimated
losses in consultation with outside counsel handling our defense in these matters, which involves an analysis of potential results, assuming a
combination of litigation and settlement strategies. Should developments in any of these matters cause a change in our determination as to an
unfavorable outcome and result in the need to recognize a material accrual, or should any of these matters result in a final adverse judgment or be
settled for significant amounts, they could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial position in the
period or periods in which such change in determination, judgment or settlement occurs. In the first quarter 2008, we recorded a pre-tax provision
of $795 for the $670 preliminary court approved settlement of Carlson v. Xerox Corporation, et al. and reserves for other pending securities-related
cases, net of expected insurance recoveries. As of July 21, 2008, Xerox has paid approximately $411 of the Carlson settlement amount into an
escrow account.
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Litigation Against the Company:

In re Xerox Corporation Securities Litigation: A consolidated securities law action (consisting of 17 cases) is pending in the United States
District Court for the District of Connecticut. Defendants are the Company, Barry Romeril, Paul Allaire and G. Richard Thoman. The consolidated
action purports to be a class action on behalf of the named plaintiffs and all other purchasers of common stock of the Company during the period
between October 22, 1998 through October 7, 1999 (“Class Period”) and alleges that in violation of Section 10(b) and/or 20(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“1934 Act”), and SEC Rule 10b-5 thereunder, each of the defendants is liable as a participant in a fraudulent
scheme and course of business that operated as a fraud or deceit on purchasers of the Company’s common stock during the Class Period by
disseminating materially false and misleading statements and/or concealing material facts relating to the defendants’ alleged failure to disclose the
material negative impact that the April 1998 restructuring had on the Company’s operations and revenues. The complaint further alleges that the
alleged scheme: (i) deceived the investing public regarding the economic capabilities, sales proficiencies, growth, operations and the intrinsic value
of the Company’s common stock; (ii) allowed several corporate insiders, such as the named individual defendants, to sell shares of privately held
common stock of the Company while in possession of materially adverse, non-public information; and (iii) caused the individual plaintiffs and the
other members of the purported class to purchase common stock of the Company at inflated prices. The complaint seeks unspecified
compensatory damages in favor of the plaintiffs and the other members of the purported class against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all
damages sustained as a result of defendants’ alleged wrongdoing, including interest thereon, together with reasonable costs and expenses
incurred in the action, including counsel fees and expert fees. In 2001, the Court denied the defendants’ motion for dismissal of the complaint. The
plaintiffs’ motion for class certification was denied by the Court in 2006, without prejudice to refilling. In February 2007, the Court granted the
motion of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Welfare Fund of Local Union No. 164, Robert W. Roten, Robert Agius (“Agius”) and
Georgia Stanley to appoint them as additional lead plaintiffs. In July 2007, the Court denied plaintiffs’ renewed motion for class certification, without
prejudice to renewal after the Court holds a pre-filing conference to identify factual disputes the Court will be required to resolve in ruling on the
motion. After that conference and Agius’ withdrawal as lead plaintiff and proposed class representative, in February 2008 plaintiffs filed a second
renewed motion for class certification, which is pending. In April 2008, Defendants filed their response and motion to disqualify Milberg LLP as a
lead counsel, which is also pending. The parties have filed motions to exclude certain expert testimony. Briefing with respect to those motions is
not yet complete. The individual defendants and we deny any wrongdoing and are vigorously defending the action. In the course of litigation, we
periodically engage in discussions with plaintiffs’ counsel for possible resolution of this matter. Should developments cause a change in our
determination as to an unfavorable outcome, or result in a final adverse judgment or a settlement for a significant amount, there could be a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial position in the period in which such change in determination, judgment or
settlement occurs.

Carlson v. Xerox Corporation, et al.: A consolidated securities law action (consisting of 21 cases) is pending in the United States District
Court for the District of Connecticut against the Company, KPMG and Paul A. Allaire, G. Richard Thoman, Anne M. Mulcahy, Barry D. Romeril,
Gregory Tayler and Philip Fishbach. On September 11, 2002, the Court entered an endorsement order granting plaintiffs’ motion to file a third
consolidated amended complaint. According to the third consolidated amended complaint, plaintiffs purport to bring this case as a class action on
behalf of a class consisting of all persons and/or entities who purchased Xerox common stock and/or bonds during the period between
February 17, 1998 through June 28, 2002 and who were purportedly damaged thereby (“Class”). The third consolidated amended complaint sets
forth two claims: one alleging that each of the Company, KPMG, and the individual defendants violated Section 10(b) of the 1934 Act and SEC
Rule 10b-5 thereunder; and the other alleging that the individual defendants are also liable as “controlling persons” of the Company pursuant to
Section 20(a) of the 1934 Act. Plaintiffs claim that the defendants participated in a fraudulent scheme that operated as a fraud and deceit on
purchasers of the Company’s common stock and bonds by disseminating materially false and misleading statements and/or concealing material
adverse facts relating to various of the Company’s accounting and reporting practices and financial condition. The plaintiffs further allege that this
scheme deceived the investing public regarding the true state of the Company’s financial condition and caused the plaintiffs and other members of
the purported Class to purchase the Company’s common stock and bonds at artificially inflated prices, and prompted a SEC investigation that led
to the April 11, 2002 settlement which, among other things, required the Company to pay a $10 penalty and restate its financials for the years
1997-2000 (including restatement of financials previously corrected in an earlier restatement which plaintiffs contend was improper). On March 27,
2008, the Court granted preliminary approval of an agreement to settle this case, pursuant to which the Company agreed to make cash payments
totaling $670 and KPMG agreed to make cash payments totaling $80. The individual defendants and the Company do not admit any wrongdoing
as a part of the settlement, which is subject to final court approval and other conditions. As required by Rule 23(e) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, the Court has scheduled a settlement fairness hearing for October 7, 2008.
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Florida State Board of Administration, et al. v. Xerox Corporation, et al.: A securities law action brought by four institutional investors, namely
the Florida State Board of Administration, the Teachers’ Retirement System of Louisiana, Franklin Mutual Advisers and PPM America, Inc., was
filed in the United States District Court for the District of Connecticut against the Company, Paul Allaire, G. Richard Thoman, Barry Romeril, Anne
Mulcahy, Philip Fishbach, Gregory Tayler and KPMG. The plaintiffs brought this action individually on their own behalves. Some or all of the
plaintiffs alleged that some or all of the defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 18 of the 1934 Act, SEC Rule 10b-5 thereunder, the Florida
Securities Investors Protection Act, Fl. Stat. ss. 517.301, and the Louisiana Securities Act, R.S. 51:712(A). Plaintiffs further claimed that the
individual defendants are each liable as “controlling persons” of the Company pursuant to Section 20 of the 1934 Act and that each of the
defendants is liable for common law fraud and negligent misrepresentation. The complaint generally alleged that the defendants participated in a
scheme and course of conduct that deceived the investing public by disseminating materially false and misleading statements and/or concealing
material adverse facts relating to the Company’s financial condition and accounting and reporting practices. The plaintiffs contended that in relying
on false and misleading statements allegedly made by the defendants, at various times from 1997 through 2000 they bought shares of the
Company’s common stock at artificially inflated prices. As a result, they allegedly suffered aggregated cash losses in excess of $200. The plaintiffs
further contended that the alleged fraudulent scheme prompted a SEC investigation that led to the April 11, 2002 settlement which, among other
things, required the Company to pay a $10 penalty and restate its financials for the years 1997-2000 including restatement of financials previously
corrected in an earlier restatement which plaintiffs contend was false and misleading. Xerox entered into a settlement agreement with plaintiffs,
effective July 18, 2008, the terms of which are not material to the Company. On July 22, 2008, plaintiffs filed a Stipulation of Dismissal with the
Court. On July 24, 2008, the Court signed and entered an order approving the Stipulation.

In Re Xerox Corp. ERISA Litigation: On July 1, 2002, a class action complaint captioned Patti v. Xerox Corp. et al. was filed in the United
States District Court for the District of Connecticut (Hartford) alleging violations of the ERISA. Four additional class actions were subsequently filed,
and the five actions were consolidated as In Re Xerox Corporation ERISA Litigation. The purported class includes all persons who invested or
maintained investments in the Xerox Stock Fund in the Xerox 401(k) Plans (either salaried or union) during the proposed class period, May 12,
1997 through November 15, 2002, and allegedly exceeds 50,000 persons. The defendants include Xerox Corporation and the following individuals
or groups of individuals during the proposed class period: the Plan Administrator, the Board of Directors, the Fiduciary Investment Review
Committee, the Joint Administrative Board, the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors, and the Treasurer. The complaint alleges that the
defendants breached their fiduciary duties under ERISA to protect the Plan’s assets and act in the interest of Plan participants. Specifically,
plaintiffs allege that the defendants failed to provide accurate and complete material information to participants concerning Xerox stock, including
accounting practices which allegedly artificially inflated the value of the stock, and misled participants regarding the soundness of the stock and the
prudence of investing their retirement assets in Xerox stock. In 2007, the Court ruled on defendants’ motion to dismiss the complaint for failure to
state claim, granting it in part and denying it in part, and giving the plaintiffs an opportunity to replead. The plaintiffs subsequently filed a Second
Consolidated Amended Complaint, alleging that some or all defendants breached their ERISA fiduciary duties during 1997-2002 by (1) maintaining
the Xerox Stock Fund as an investment option under the Plan; (2) failing to monitor the conduct of Plan fiduciaries; and (3) misleading Plan
participants about Xerox stock as an investment option under the Plans. The complaint does not specify the amount of damages sought, but
demands that the losses to the Plans be restored, which it describes as “millions of dollars.” It also seeks other legal and equitable relief, as
appropriate, to remedy the alleged breaches of fiduciary duty, as well as interest, costs and attorneys’ fees. In July 2007, Defendants answered the
complaint and also filed a partial motion to dismiss. Subsequently in 2007, the plaintiffs filed their motion for class certification and filed their
opposition to defendants’ partial motion to dismiss. In March 2008 the Court denied plaintiffs’ motion for class certification, without prejudice
against re-filing, and also denied most of defendants’ partial motion to dismiss. On July 1, 2008, plaintiffs refiled their class certification motion and
also filed a Third Consolidated Amended Complaint. The Company and the other defendants deny any wrongdoing and will continue to vigorously
defend the action. Discovery in the case is ongoing. We periodically engage in discussions with plaintiffs’ counsel for possible resolution of this
matter. Should developments cause a change in our determination as to an unfavorable outcome, or result in a final adverse judgment or a
settlement for a significant amount, there could be a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial position in the
period in which such change in determination, judgment or settlement occurs.

Digwamaje et al. v. IBM et al.: A purported class action was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on
September 27, 2002. Service of the complaint on the Company was deemed effective as of December 6, 2002. The purported class includes all
persons who lived in South Africa at any time
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from 1948 until the present and purportedly suffered damages as a result of human rights violations and crimes against humanity through the
system of apartheid. The defendants include the Company and a number of other corporate defendants who are accused of providing material
assistance to the apartheid government in South Africa from 1948 to 1994, by engaging in commerce in South Africa and with the South African
government and by employing forced labor, thereby violating both international and common law. Specifically, plaintiffs claim violations of the Alien
Tort Claims Act, the Torture Victims Protection Act and RICO. They also assert human rights violations and crimes against humanity. Plaintiffs seek
compensatory damages in excess of $200 billion and punitive damages in excess of $200 billion. In November 2004, the Court granted Xerox’s
motion to dismiss. In 2005, the Court amended its November 2004 order, which dismissed the action, so as to render the order appealable and
plaintiffs filed a new appeal on May 3, 2005. In 2007, the United States Court of Appeals affirmed the dismissal of the claims asserted under the
Torture Victim Protection Act, vacated the dismissal of the claims asserted under the Alien Tort Claims Act and remanded those claims to the
District Court for further proceedings. In January 2008, defendants-appellees filed a petition for a writ of certiorari in the Supreme Court of the
United States, seeking review of the Second Circuit’s October 2007 opinion. On May 12, 2008, the Supreme Court, lacking a quorum due to the
recusal of four justices, affirmed the decision of the Second Circuit pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 2109. That section requires the Court to enter an
order affirming a Court of Appeals decision when a quorum is not available to hear the case. The case proceeds in the District Court. Xerox denies
any wrongdoing and is vigorously defending the action. Based upon the present stage of the litigation, it is not possible to estimate the amount of
loss or range of possible loss that might result from this matter.

Arbitration between MPI Technologies, Inc. and Xerox Canada Ltd. and Xerox Corporation: In an arbitration proceeding the hearing of which
commenced in January 2005, MPI Technologies, Inc. and MPI Tech S.A. (collectively “MPI”) sought damages from the Company and Xerox
Canada Ltd. (“XCL”) for royalties owed under a license agreement between MPI and XCL (the “Agreement”) and breach of fiduciary duty, breach of
confidence, equitable royalties and punitive damages and disgorgement of profits and injunctive relief with respect to a claim of copyright
infringement. In September 2005, the arbitration panel rendered its decision, holding in part that the Agreement had been assigned to Xerox and
that no punitive damages should be granted, and awarded MPI approximately $89, plus interest thereon. In December 2005, the arbitration panel
rendered its decision on the applicable rate of pre-judgment interest resulting in an award of $13 for pre- and post-judgment interest. In 2006,
Xerox’s application for judicial review of the award, seeking to have the award set aside in its entirety, was denied by the Ontario Superior Court in
Toronto and Xerox released all monies and software it had placed in escrow. In January 2007, Xerox and XCL served an arbitration claim against
MPI seeking a declaratory award concerning the preclusive effect of the remedy awarded by the prior arbitration panel. In March 2007, MPI
delivered to Xerox a statement of defense and counterclaim in response to Xerox’s arbitration claim. MPI claims entitlement to an unspecified
amount of damages for royalties. In addition, MPI claims damages of $50 for alleged “misuse” of its licensed software by Xerox after December
2006. MPI also claims entitlement to unspecified amounts of pre and post-judgment interest and its costs of the arbitration. A panel of three
arbitrators has been appointed to hear the dispute. The panel heard oral arguments relating to preliminary dispositive motions on May 20-21, 2008.
In the course of litigation, we periodically engage in discussions with MPI’s counsel for possible resolution of this matter. Should developments
cause a change in our determination as to an unfavorable outcome, or result in a final adverse judgment or a settlement for a significant amount,
there could be a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial position in the period in which such change in
determination, judgment or settlement occurs. Based on the present stage of the proceeding, it is not possible to estimate the amount of any
material loss or range of material loss that might result from any of the claims advanced in such counterclaim.

National Union Fire Insurance Company v. Xerox Corporation, et al.: On October 24, 2003, a declaratory judgment action was filed in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New York against the Company and several current and former officers and/or members of the
Board of Directors. Plaintiff claimed that it issued an Excess Directors & Officers Liability and Corporate Reimbursement Policy to the Company in
reliance on information from the Company that allegedly misrepresented the Company’s financial condition and outlook. The policy at issue
provides for $25 of coverage as a component of the company reimbursement portion of an insurance program that provides for coverage (after
deductibles and coinsurance and subject to other policy limitations and requirements) over a three-year period. Plaintiff seeks judgment (i) that it is
entitled to rescind the policy as void from the outset; (ii) in the alternative, limiting coverage under the policy and awarding plaintiff damages in an
unspecified amount representing that portion of any required payment under the policy that is attributable to the Company’s and the individual
defendants’ own misconduct; and (iii) for the costs and disbursement of the action and such other relief as the court deems just and proper. In
November 2004, the Court issued an opinion partially granting and partially denying defendants’ motions to dismiss the original complaint. In
February 2006, plaintiff filed an amended complaint. In May 2006 the Court dismissed all claims asserted by the plaintiff in the original complaint.
Xerox served its motion to dismiss the amended complaint and for sanctions, which the Court granted in August 2006. All claims asserted by
National Union have been dismissed. The parties
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executed a Settlement and Release Agreement in April 2008 and jointly filed a Stipulation and Order of Discontinuance on April 14, 2008, which
was so ordered by the Court on April 17, 2008 and filed by the Court on April 30, 2008. Pursuant to the terms of the settlement, defendants have
agreed to waive recovery of fees and sanctions in exchange for National Union agreeing to tender all of its policy limits and foregoing its right to
appeal. No admission of liability was made as a part of the settlement.

Warren, et al. v. Xerox Corporation: On March 11, 2004, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York entered an order
certifying a nationwide class of all black salespersons employed by Xerox from February 1, 1997 to the present under Title VII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended, and the Civil Rights Act of 1871. The suit was commenced on May 9, 2001 by six black sales representatives. The
plaintiffs allege that Xerox has engaged in a pattern or practice of race discrimination against them and other black sales representatives by
assigning them to less desirable sales territories, denying them promotional opportunities, and paying them less than their white counterparts.
Although the complaint does not specify the amount of damages sought, plaintiffs do seek, on behalf of themselves and the classes they seek to
represent, front and back pay, compensatory and punitive damages, and attorneys’ fees. A tentative settlement agreement was reached, the terms
of which are not material to Xerox, and in 2007, the parties submitted the settlement agreement to the Court for preliminary approval. At a status
conference held on June 6, 2007, the judge indicated that he would not approve the current version of the settlement agreement. He was
concerned that the named plaintiffs may be receiving a disproportionate amount of damages as compared to the other class members. He directed
the parties to revise this aspect of the agreement and bring it back to him. A revised agreement was submitted to the Court on March 7, 2008 and
the Court approved it, without hearing, on April 3, 2008. Notice of the preliminary approval was mailed to Class Members on May 9, 2008 and a
Final Fairness Hearing was held on July 11, 2008. We are awaiting the Court’s decision with respect to final approval of the settlement. The
Company denies any wrongdoing as part of the settlement.

Other Matters:
It is our policy to promptly and carefully investigate, often with the assistance of outside advisers, allegations of impropriety that may come to

our attention. If the allegations are substantiated, appropriate prompt remedial action is taken. When and where appropriate, we report such
matters to the U.S. Department of Justice and to the SEC, and/or make public disclosure.

India: In recent years we became aware of a number of matters at our Indian subsidiary, Xerox India Ltd. (formerly Xerox Modicorp Ltd.), that
occurred over a period of several years, much of which occurred before we obtained majority ownership of these operations in mid-1999. These
matters include misappropriations of funds and payments to other companies that may have been inaccurately recorded on the subsidiary’s books
and certain alleged improper payments in connection with sales to government customers. These transactions were not material to the Company’s
financial statements. We reported these transactions to the Indian authorities, the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) and to the SEC. In 2005, the
private Indian investigator engaged by the Indian Ministry of Company Affairs completed an investigation of these matters and issued a report
(“Report”). A copy of the Report was provided to our Indian subsidiary, which was asked by the Indian Ministry of Company Affairs to comment on
the Report. The Report addresses the previously disclosed misappropriation of funds and alleged improper payments and includes allegations that
Xerox India Ltd.’s senior officials and the Company were aware of such activities. The Report also asserts the need for further investigation into
potential criminal acts related to the improper activities addressed by the Report. The matter is now pending in the Indian Ministry of Company
Affairs. The Company reported these developments and made a copy of the Report received by Xerox India Ltd. available to the DOJ and the
SEC.

On November 17, 2005, Xerox India Ltd. filed its reply with the Ministry of Company Affairs (or “MCA”). Xerox sent copies of the reply to the
SEC and DOJ in the United States. In our reply, we argue that the alleged violations of Indian Company Law by means of alleged improper
payments and alleged defaults/failures of the Xerox India Ltd. board of directors were generally unsubstantiated and without any basis in law.
Further, we stated that the Report’s findings of other alleged violations were unsubstantiated and unproven. The MCA will consider our reply and
will let us know their conclusions. There is the possibility of fines or criminal penalties if conclusive proof of wrongdoing is found. We have told the
MCA that Xerox’s conduct in voluntarily disclosing the initial information and readily and willingly submitting to investigation, coupled with the non-
availability of earlier records, warrants complete closure and early settlement. In January 2006, we learned that the MCA had issued a “Show
Cause Notice” to certain former executives of Xerox India Ltd. seeking a response to allegations of potential violations of the Indian Companies
Act. We also learned that Xerox India Ltd. had received a formal Notice of Enquiry from the
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Indian Monopolies & Restrictive Trade Practices Commission (“MRTP Commission”) alleging that Xerox India Ltd. committed unfair trading
practices arising from the events described in the Report. In March 2007, Xerox India Ltd. filed its reply to the Notice of Enquiry and the
investigating officer subsequently filed his response to our reply. At a hearing in August 2007, we argued that the Enquiry is not maintainable under
the Commission’s jurisdiction. The issue of maintainability of the Notice of Enquiry has been framed as the preliminary issue to be decided by the
Commission at the next hearing, scheduled for August 1, 2008. Our Indian subsidiary plans to contest the Notice of Enquiry and has been fully
cooperating with the authorities.
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Item 2

XEROX CORPORATION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is intended to help the reader understand the financial condition and results
of operations of Xerox Corporation. MD&A is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes.

Throughout this document, references to “we,” “our,” the “Company” and “Xerox” refer to Xerox Corporation and its subsidiaries. References
to “Xerox Corporation” refer to the stand-alone parent company and do not include its subsidiaries.

To understand the trends in the business, we believe that it is helpful to analyze the impact of changes in the translation of foreign currencies
into U.S. dollars on revenue and expenses. We refer to this analysis as “currency impact” or “the impact from currency.” This includes translating
the most recent financial results of operations using foreign currency of the earliest period presented. Currencies for our developing market
countries (Latin America, Brazil, the Middle East, India, Eurasia and Central-Eastern Europe) are reflected at actual exchange rates for all periods
presented, because these countries generally have volatile currency and inflationary environments, and our operations in these countries have
historically implemented pricing actions to recover the impact of inflation and devaluation. We do not hedge the translation effect of revenues or
expenses denominated in currencies where the local currency is the functional currency.

Summary
Revenues
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,

(in millions)   2008   2007   Change  2008   2007   Change
Equipment sales   $1,160  $1,141  2%  $ 2,258  $ 2,072  9%
Post sale revenue(1)    3,373   3,067  10%   6,610   5,972  11%

    
 

   
 

     
 

   
 

 

Total Revenue   $4,533  $4,208  8%  $ 8,868  $ 8,044  10%
    

 

   

 

     

 

   

 

 

Reconciliation to Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income         

Sales   $2,119  $1,976    $ 4,132  $ 3,683  
Less: Supplies, paper and other sales    (959)  (835)    (1,874)  (1,611) 

    
 

   
 

     
 

   
 

 

Equipment sales   $1,160  $1,141    $ 2,258  $ 2,072  
    

 

   

 

     

 

   

 

 

Service, outsourcing and rentals   $2,207  $2,027    $ 4,320  $ 3,951  
Finance income    207   205     416   410  
Add: Supplies, paper and other sales    959   835     1,874   1,611  

    
 

   
 

     
 

   
 

 

Post sale revenue   $3,373  $3,067    $ 6,610  $ 5,972  
    

 

   

 

     

 

   

 

 

Memo: Color(2)   $1,700  $1,531  11%  $ 3,302  $ 2,954  12%
    

 

   

 

     

 

   

 

 

Second quarter 2008 total revenues grew 8% compared to the second quarter 2007. Our consolidated 2008 results include the results of Global
Imaging Systems (“GIS”), which was acquired effective May 9, 2007. When including a full quarter of GIS in our 2007 results(3), second quarter
2008 total revenue grew 5%. Currency had a 4-percentage point positive impact on total revenues in the quarter. Total revenues included the
following:
 

•  10% increase in post sale revenue, or 8% including a full quarter of GIS in our 2007 results(3). Growth in GIS, color products and document
management services more than offset a decline in light lens products revenue. The components of post sale revenue increased as follows:

 

 •  9% increase in service, outsourcing and rentals revenue to $2,207 million, reflecting the inclusion of GIS, growth in document
management services and technical service revenue.
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 •  Supplies, paper and other sales of $959 million grew 15% year-over-year due to the inclusion of GIS as well as growth in supplies and
paper sales.

 

•  2% increase in equipment sales revenue, with a 4-percentage point benefit from currency. When including a full quarter of GIS in our 2007
results(3), second quarter 2008 equipment sales revenue declined 2%, with a 3-percentage point benefit from currency. Growth in install
activity was offset by overall price declines between 5% and 10% as well as product mix. More than two-thirds of the second quarter 2008
equipment sales were generated from products launched in the past 24 months.

 

•  11% growth in color revenue(2). Color revenue of $1,700 million comprised 40% of total revenue in the second quarter 2008, excluding GIS,
compared to 38% in the second quarter 2007(4), reflecting:

 

 
•  17% growth in color post sale revenue. Color represented 37% of post sale revenue in the second quarter 2008, excluding GIS, versus

34% in the second quarter 2007(4) .
 

 
•  Color equipment sales revenue was flat. Color sales represented 50% of total equipment sales in the second quarter 2008, excluding

GIS, versus 48% of total equipment sales in the second quarter 2007(4).

Total revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2008, grew 10% compared to the prior year period, or 5% when including GIS in our 2007
results(3). Currency had a 4-percentage point positive impact on total revenues. Total revenues included the following:
 

•  11% increase in post sale revenue, or 7% including GIS in our 2007 results(3). This included a 4-percentage point benefit from currency.
Growth in GIS, color products and document management services more than offset a decline in light lens products revenue. The
components of post sale revenue increased as follows:

 

 •  9% increase in service, outsourcing and rentals revenue to $4,320 million reflected the inclusion of GIS, growth in document
management services and technical service revenue.

 

 •  Supplies, paper and other sales of $1,874 million grew 16% year-over-year due to the inclusion of GIS as well as growth in color
supplies and paper sales.

 

•  9% increase in equipment sales revenue, with a 4-percentage point benefit from currency. When including GIS in our 2007 results (3),
equipment sales revenue was unchanged, with a 4-percentage point benefit from currency. Growth in install activity was offset by overall
price declines between 5% and 10% as well as product mix.

 

•  12% growth in color revenue(2). Color revenue of $3,302 million comprised 40% of total revenue during the six months ended June 30, 2008,
excluding GIS, compared to 38% during the six months ended June 30, 2007(4), reflecting:

 

 
•  16% growth in color post sale revenue. Color represented 37% of post sale revenue during the six months ended June 30, 2008,

excluding GIS, compared to 34% in the prior year period(4).
 

 
•  2% growth in color equipment sales revenue. Color sales represented 49% of total equipment sales during the six months ended

June 30, 2008, excluding GIS, compared to 48% of total equipment sales during the six months ended June 30, 2007(4).

Notes:
 

•  Approximately 75% of GIS revenue is included in the Office segment representing those sales and services that align to our Office segment,
and 25% is in the Other segment.

 

•  Install activity percentages include the Xerox-branded shipments to GIS.

Net Income
Second quarter 2008 net income of $215 million, or $0.24 per diluted share included an after-tax charge for restructuring of $43 million ($63 million
pre-tax), or $0.05 per diluted share.

Second quarter 2007 net income was $266 million, or $0.28 per diluted share.

Total net loss for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was $(29) million, or $(0.03) per diluted share and included an after-tax charge of $491
million ($795 million pre-tax), or $0.54 per diluted share, associated with securities-related litigation matters as well as an after-tax charge of $43
million ($63 million pre-tax), or $0.05 per diluted share for restructuring.
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Total net income for the six months ended June 30, 2007 was $499 million, or $0.52 per diluted share.
 
(1) Post sale revenue is largely a function of the equipment placed at customer locations, the volume of prints and copies that our customers

make on that equipment, the mix of color pages, as well as associated services.
 
(2) Color revenues represent a subset of total revenues and exclude GIS revenues.
 
(3) The impact from GIS reflects the revenue growth year-over-year after including GIS’ results for the full second quarter 2007 on a pro forma

basis. See the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section for an explanation of this non-GAAP measure.
 
(4) For the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, total color, color post sale and color equipment sales revenue comprised 38%, 35% and

44%, respectively, and 37%, 35% and 43%, respectively, if calculated on total, total post sale and total equipment sales revenues, including
GIS. GIS is excluded from the color information presented, as the breakout of the information required to make this computation for all
periods is not available.
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Operations Review
 
   Three Months Ended June 30,
(in millions)   Production  Office   Other   Total
2008        

Equipment sales   $ 317  $ 775  $ 68  $1,160
Post sale revenue    1,020   1,751   602   3,373

            
 

   

Total Revenue   $ 1,337  $ 2,526  $ 670  $4,533
            

 

   

Operating Profit (Loss)   $ 87  $ 279  $ (16) $ 350
            

 

   

Operating Margin    6.5%   11.0%   (2.4)%   7.7%
            

 

   

2007        
Equipment sales   $ 342  $ 738  $ 61  $1,141
Post sale revenue    939   1,589   539   3,067

            
 

   

Total Revenue   $ 1,281  $ 2,327  $ 600  $4,208
            

 

   

Operating Profit (Loss)   $ 111  $ 267  $ (31) $ 347
            

 

   

Operating Margin    8.7%   11.5%   (5.2)%   8.2%
            

 

   

   Six Months Ended June 30,
(in millions)   Production  Office   Other   Total
2008        

Equipment sales   $ 600  $ 1,531  $ 127  $2,258
Post sale revenue    2,008   3,442   1,160   6,610

            
 

   

Total Revenue   $ 2,608  $ 4,973  $ 1,287  $8,868
            

 

   

Operating Profit (Loss)   $ 188  $ 544  $ (56) $ 676
            

 

   

Operating Margin    7.2%   10.9%   (4.4)%   7.6%
            

 

   

2007        
Equipment sales   $ 628  $ 1,343  $ 101  $2,072
Post sale revenue    1,847   3,089   1,036   5,972

            
 

   

Total Revenue   $ 2,475  $ 4,432  $ 1,137  $8,044
            

 

   

Operating Profit (Loss)   $ 230  $ 526  $ (47) $ 709
            

 

   

Operating Margin    9.3%   11.9%   (4.1)%   8.8%
            

 

   

Refer to Note 3 – Segment Reporting for the reconciliation of Segment Operating Profit to Pre-tax Income (Loss).

In 2008 we revised our segment reporting to integrate the Developing Markets Operations (“DMO”) into the Production, Office and Other
segments. DMO is a geographic region that has matured to a level where we now manage it based on the basis of products sold, consistent with
our North American and European geographic regions. Refer to “2008 Segment Reporting Change” for DMO’s results.
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Production
Revenue
Second quarter 2008 Production revenue of $1,337 million increased 4%, including a 5-percentage point benefit from currency, reflecting:
 

•  9% increase in post sale revenue as growth from digital products more than offset declines in revenue from light lens technology.
 

•  7% decline in equipment sales revenue, including a 6-percentage point benefit from currency, reflecting declines in light production and color
printing systems as well as the impact of the U.S. economy.

 

•  12% decline in installs of production color products driven in part by timing of new product introductions.
 

•  8% decline in installs of production black-and-white systems driven by declines in installs of light production printing systems.

Production revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of $2,608 million increased 5%, including a 5-percentage point benefit from currency,
reflecting:
 

•  9% increase in post sale revenue, including a 5-percentage point benefit from currency, as growth from digital products more than offset
declines in revenue from light lens technology.

 

•  4% decline in equipment sales revenue, including a 6-percentage point benefit from currency, reflecting declines in light production and color
printing systems.

 

•  3% decline in installs of production color products driven in part by the timing of new product introductions.
 

•  1% decline in installs of production black-and-white systems driven by declines in installs of light production systems.

Operating Profit
Second quarter 2008 Production profit of $87 million decreased $24 million from second quarter 2007 due to increased SAG expenses associated
with sales coverage investments and spending associated with the drupa trade show.

Production profit for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of $188 million decreased $42 million from the six months ended June 30, 2007, as
higher gross profit was more than offset by increased SAG expenses including sales coverage investments and spending associated with the
drupa trade show.

Office
Revenue
Second quarter 2008 Office revenue of $2,526 million increased 9%, including a 4-percentage point benefit from currency, reflecting:
 

•  10% increase in post sale revenue, reflecting a full quarter of GIS results, as well as growth from color multifunction devices and color
printers.

 

•  5% increase in equipment sales revenue, reflecting a full quarter of GIS results as well as growth from color digital products partially offset by
declines from black-and-white devices primarily due to price declines and product mix.

 

•  34% color multifunction device install growth led by strong demand for Xerox WorkCentre® and Phaser® products.
 

•  10% increase in installs of black-and-white copiers and multifunction devices, including 11% growth in Segment 1&2 products (11-30 ppm)
and 8% growth in Segment 3-5 products (31-90 ppm). Segment 3-5 installs include the Xerox 4595, a 95 ppm device with an embedded
controller.

Office revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of $4,973 million increased 12%, including a 4-percentage point benefit from currency,
reflecting:
 

•  11% increase in post sale revenue, reflecting the inclusion of GIS, as well as growth from color multifunction devices and printers partially
offset by declines in black-and-white digital devices.

 

•  14% increase in equipment sales revenue, including a 4-percentage point benefit from currency, reflecting the inclusion of GIS, as well as
strong growth from color digital products which more than offset declines from black-and-white devices primarily due to price declines and
product mix.

 

•  37% color multifunction device install growth led by strong demand for Xerox WorkCentre® and Phaser® products.
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•  22% increase in installs of black-and-white copiers and multifunction devices, including 26% growth in Segment 1&2 products (11-30 ppm)
and 11% growth in Segment 3-5 products (31-90 ppm). Segment 3-5 installs include the Xerox 4595, a 95 ppm device with an embedded
controller.

Operating Profit
Second quarter 2008 Office profit of $279 million increased $12 million from second quarter 2007 as a result of the inclusion of GIS for a full
quarter in 2008 and higher gross profit, which was partially offset by increased SAG expenses.

Office profit for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of $544 million increased $18 million from the six months ended June 30, 2007 as a result of
the inclusion of GIS and higher gross profit, which was partially offset by increased SAG expenses.

Other
Revenue
Second quarter 2008 Other segment revenue of $670 million increased 12%, including a 3-percentage point benefit from currency, primarily
reflecting a full quarter of GIS results in 2008 as well as increased paper revenue.

Other segment revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of $1,287 million increased 13%, including a 3-percentage point benefit from
currency, primarily reflecting the inclusion of GIS as well as increased paper revenue.

Paper comprised approximately half of the Other segment revenue for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008.

Operating Profit
Second quarter 2008 Other segment loss of $16 million improved $15 million from the six months ended June 30, 2007, reflecting higher income
from licensing arrangements, value-added services and other supplies sales, including paper.

Other segment loss for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of $56 million increased $9 million from the comparable 2007 period, primarily due to
higher foreign exchange losses and lower wide format profit and was partially offset by increased equity income and higher income from licensing
arrangements and other supplies sales, including paper.

Costs, Expenses and Other Income
Gross Margin
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,      

Six Months
Ended June 30,    

   2008   2007   Change  2008   2007   Change
Total Gross Margin   39.2%  40.3%  (1.1) pts  39.3%  40.4%  (1.1) pts

Sales   33.9%  34.9%  (1.0) pts  34.2%  35.7%  (1.5) pts
Service, outsourcing and rentals   42.2%  43.4%  (1.2) pts  42.0%  42.6%  (0.6) pts
Financing income   61.8%  61.5%  0.3 pts  61.8%  61.7%  0.1 pts

Total gross margin decreased 1.1-percentage points for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, as compared to the 2007 comparable
periods due primarily to price declines and a higher proportion of revenue from lower margin channels and products.

Sales gross margin decreased 1.0-percentage points and 1.5-percentage points, respectively, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008,
as compared to the 2007 comparable periods primarily due to the approximate 3.0-percentage point impact of price declines, as well as channel
and product mix, which were partially offset by cost improvements and other variances.

Service, outsourcing and rentals margin decreased 1.2-percentage points and 0.6-percentage points, respectively, for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2008, as compared to the 2007 comparable periods, driven in part by a higher mix of document management services at a lower
gross margin. Cost improvements offset price declines of approximately 1.0-percentage point for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008.
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Research, Development and Engineering Expenses (“R,D&E”)
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,      

Six Months
Ended June 30,    

   2008   2007   Change  2008   2007   Change
R,D&E % Revenue   4.9%  5.3% (0.4) pts  5.0%  5.5% (0.5) pts

R,D&E of $223 million and $444 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 was unchanged and $3 million higher than the prior year
comparable periods, respectively. R&D of $190 million and $374 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 increased $2 million and
$5 million, respectively from the prior year periods. Sustaining engineering costs of $33 million and $70 million for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2008 both decreased $2 million from prior year comparable periods. R,D&E as a percentage of revenue declined 0.4-percentage points
and 0.5-percentage points for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, as we leveraged our current R,D&E investments to support GIS
operations.

We invest in technological development, particularly in color, and believe our R&D spending is sufficient to remain technologically competitive.
Xerox R&D is strategically coordinated with Fuji Xerox.

Selling, Administrative and General Expenses (“SAG”)
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,      

Six Months
Ended June 30,    

   2008   2007   Change  2008   2007   Change
SAG % Revenue   25.8%  25.7%  0.1 pts  25.9%  25.3%  0.6 pts

SAG expenses of $1,170 million in the second quarter 2008 were $89 million higher than the second quarter 2007, reflecting a full quarter of GIS
results in 2008, as well as a $33 million negative impact from currency. The SAG expense increase reflected the following:
 

•  $46 million increase in selling expenses reflecting a full quarter of GIS results, unfavorable currency, investments in selling resources and
spending associated with the drupa trade show.

 

•  $48 million increase in general and administrative expenses reflecting a full quarter of GIS results and unfavorable currency.
 

•  $5 million decrease in bad debt expenses to $34 million due to higher prior year reserves.

SAG expenses of $2,294 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $259 million higher than the six months ended June 30, 2007,
reflecting $131 million from the inclusion of GIS, as well as a $71 million negative impact from currency. The SAG expense increase reflected the
following:
 

•  $136 million increase in selling expenses primarily from the inclusion of GIS, as well as unfavorable currency, and investments in selling
resources and marketing communications including spending associated with the drupa trade show.

 

•  $127 million increase in general and administrative expenses primarily from the inclusion of GIS, as well as unfavorable currency and
additional 2007 compensation expense.

 

•  $4 million decrease in bad debt expenses to $62 million.

Worldwide Employment
Worldwide employment of 58,000 at June 30, 2008 increased approximately 600 from year-end 2007 primarily reflecting additional headcount
associated with acquisitions and additional sales professionals.

Restructuring Charges
During the second quarter 2008, we recorded net restructuring charges of $63 million primarily related to headcount reductions of approximately
1,000 employees primarily in North America. About two-thirds of these charges are associated with initiatives focused on improving gross margin
and the remainder are primarily focused on reducing general and administrative expenses.
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The restructuring reserve balance as of June 30, 2008, for all programs was $119 million, of which approximately $95 million is expected to be
spent over the next twelve months.

Provision for Litigation, Net
The litigation provision recorded in the first quarter 2008, of $795 million, reflects the $670 million preliminary court approved settlement of Carlson
v. Xerox Corporation and other pending securities-related cases, net of expected insurance recoveries.

Other Expenses, Net
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,  

(in millions)   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Non-financing interest expense   $ 65  $ 70  $ 119  $ 128 
Interest income    (9)   (14)  (21)   (31)
Gains on sales of businesses and assets    (15)   —   (22)   (4)
Currency losses (gains), net    2   (1)  21   2 
Amortization of intangible assets    13   10   26   16 
Legal matters    6   1   7   1 
Other, net    16   12   28   23 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total   $ 78  $ 78  $ 158  $ 135 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Non-Financing Interest Expense
Non-financing interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 of $65 million and $119 million, was $5 million and $9 million
lower than prior year comparable periods, reflecting the benefit of lower interest rates partially offset by higher average debt balances.

Interest Income
Interest income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 of $9 million and $21 million, decreased $5 million and $10 million, respectively,
compared to prior year comparable periods, reflecting lower average cash balances and rates of return.

Gains on Sales of Businesses and Assets
Gains during the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 are primarily due to the sale of certain surplus facilities in Latin America.

Currency Losses, Net
Net currency losses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of $21 million were $19 million higher than prior year comparable period, primarily due
to losses associated with the significant and rapid weakening of the U.S. Dollar and Euro as compared to the Yen in the first quarter of 2008.

Amortization of Intangible Assets
Amortization of intangible assets expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 of $13 million and $26 million was $3 million and $10
million higher than prior year comparable periods, respectively, primarily due to the amortization of intangible assets associated with our GIS
acquisition.

Legal Matters
Second quarter 2008 litigation expense of $6 million was related to probable losses on various legal matters.

Income Taxes
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,      

Six Months
Ended June 30,     

   2008   2007   Change  2008   2007   Change 
Income tax expense (benefit)   $ 59  $ 76  $ (17) $ (187)  $ 178  $ (365)
Effective tax rate    24.1%   24.1%  — pts   68.5%   27.6%  * pts 
 
* change not meaningful.
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The second quarter 2008 effective tax rate was 24.1% and included a 1.5% benefit from the tax effect of the second quarter restructuring charges.
Excluding the impact of the restructuring charges, the adjusted effective tax rate was 25.6%(5) as compared to 24.1% in the second quarter of 2007.
These rates were lower than the U.S. statutory tax rate primarily reflecting tax benefits from the utilization of foreign tax credits and the
geographical mix of income before taxes and the related tax rates in those jurisdictions.

The effective tax rate for six months ended June 30, 2008 of 68.5%, included a $304 million tax benefit associated with the $795 million net
provision for securities-related litigation matters as well as a $20 million tax benefit for the second quarter 2008 restructuring charges of $63
million. Excluding the impact of these discrete charges, the adjusted effective tax rate(5) was 23.4%, which was lower than the U.S. statutory tax
rate primarily due to the net tax benefits from the resolution and re-measurement of certain unrecognized tax positions as well as the utilization of
foreign tax credits and the geographical mix of income before taxes and the related tax rates in those jurisdictions.

The effective tax rates for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 of 24.1% and 27.6% were lower than the U.S. statutory tax rate of 35.0%
primarily reflecting tax benefits from the utilization of foreign tax credits and the geographical mix of income before taxes and the related effective
tax rates in those jurisdictions.

Our effective tax rate is based on nonrecurring events as well as recurring factors, including the geographical mix of income and the related tax
rates in those jurisdictions, and available foreign tax credits. In addition, our effective tax rate will change based on discrete or other nonrecurring
events that may not be predictable. We anticipate that our effective tax rate for the remaining quarters of 2008 will approximate 26%, excluding the
effects of any future discrete events.

(5) See the “Non-GAAP Measure” section for additional information.

Equity in Net Income of Unconsolidated Affiliates
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates of $29 million and $57 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 increased $2
million and $24 million compared to the 2007 comparable periods, respectively, reflecting our 25% share of Fuji Xerox’s higher net income as well
as favorable currency. 2007 results included charges of $23 million related to our share of Fuji Xerox’s restructuring while 2008 included charges of
$13 million primarily related to pension settlements.

2008 Segment Reporting Change
Effective January 1, 2008, we revised our segment reporting to integrate DMO into the Production, Office and Other segments. We will

continue to provide DMO’s revenue and profit on a supplemental basis as follows through 2008.
 
   Total DMO

(in millions)   

Three Months
Ended June 30,  

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2008     
Equipment sales   $ 194  $ 351
Post sale revenue    437   817

        

Total Revenue   $ 631  $ 1,168
        

Segment Profit   $ 69  $ 107
        

2007     
Equipment sales   $ 165  $ 295
Post sale revenue    366   694

        

Total Revenue   $ 531  $ 989
        

Segment Profit   $ 37  $ 53
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Capital Resources and Liquidity
The following table summarizes our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007:
 

   

Six Months
Ended June 30,     

(in millions)   2008   2007   Change 
Net Cash provided by operating activities   $ 494  $ 575  $ (81)
Net Cash used in investing activities    (350)  (1,528)  1,178 
Net Cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (404)  387   (791)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    4   17   (13)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents    (256)  (549)  293 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    1,099   1,399   (300)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    843   850   (7)
Short-term investments    —   20   (20)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments   $ 843  $ 870  $ (27)
    

 

   

 

   

 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities was $494 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. The $81 million decrease in cash from the six
months ended June 30, 2007 was primarily due to the following:
 

•  $70 million decrease primarily due to lower accounts payable related to the timing of payments.
 

•  $62 million decrease due to higher net income tax payments, primarily resulting from the absence of prior year tax refunds.
 

•  $21 million decrease due to higher inventory of $5 million, as well as a $16 million increase in equipment on operating leases reflecting
higher operating lease install activity.

 

•  $11 million decrease due to higher pension contributions primarily in our foreign plans.
 

•  $75 million increase due to lower restructuring payments resulting from a lower level of restructuring activity during the preceding twelve
months.

 

•  $48 million increase due to improved collection performance of trade receivables.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was $350 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. The $1,178 million increase in cash from the six
months ended June 30, 2007 was primarily due to the following:
 

•  $1,388 million increase due to less cash used for acquisitions in 2008. Current year acquisitions included $138 million for Veenman B.V. and
Saxon Business Systems as compared to $1,530 million for the acquisition of GIS in the prior year comparable period.

 

•  $177 million decrease due to higher escrow and other restricted investments, primarily resulting from the initial funding of the escrow account
for the previously disclosed Carlson litigation settlement.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities was $404 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. The $791 million decrease in cash from the six
months ended June 30, 2007 was primarily due to the following:
 

•  $425 million decrease from lower net cash proceeds on debt. 2008 reflects the issuance of $1.4 billion in Senior Notes, as well as net
payments of $550 million on our Credit Facility and net payments of $279 million on other debt. 2007 reflects the issuance of $1.1 billion
Senior Notes partially offset by net payments of $104 million on other debt.

 

•  $423 million decrease due to higher purchases under our share repurchase program.
 

•  $79 million decrease due to common stock dividend payments.
 

•  $64 million decrease due to lower proceeds from the issuance of common stock, reflecting a decrease in stock option exercises as well as
lower related tax benefits.

 

•  $33 million decrease due to share repurchases related to employee withholding taxes on stock-based compensation vesting.
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•  $227 million increase from lower net repayments on secured debt reflecting continued run-off of our U.S. secured borrowing program.

Customer Financing Activities
The following represents our total finance assets associated with our lease and finance operations:
 

(in millions)   

June 30,
2008   

December 31,
2007

Total Finance receivables, net (1)   $ 7,905  $ 8,048
Equipment on operating leases, net    629   587

        

Total Finance Assets, net   $ 8,534  $ 8,635
         

(1) Includes (i) billed portion of finance receivables, net, (ii) finance receivables, net and (iii) finance receivables due after one year, net as
included in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Accounts Receivable Sales Arrangement
During the second quarter 2008 we sold $168 million of accounts receivables, as compared to $200 million in the first quarter 2008 and $176
million in the fourth quarter 2007, under an existing accounts receivables sales arrangement in Europe. $168 million of receivables sold to date
under this arrangement remained uncollected by the third party as of June 30, 2008.

Liquidity, Financial Flexibility and Funding Plans
We manage our worldwide liquidity using internal cash management practices, which are subject to 1) the statutes, regulations and practices of
each of the local jurisdictions in which we operate, 2) the legal requirements of the agreements to which we are a party and 3) the policies and
cooperation of the financial institutions we utilize to maintain and provide cash management services.

We are currently rated investment grade by all major rating agencies. As of June 30, 2008, the ratings were as follows:
 

   

Senior Unsecured
Debt   Outlook

Moody’s   Baa2   Positive
Standard & Poors (“S&P”)   BBB   Stable
Fitch   BBB   Stable

Our liquidity is a function of our ability to successfully generate cash flows from a combination of efficient operations and improvement therein,
access to capital markets, securitizations, funding from third parties and borrowings secured by our finance receivables portfolios. As of June 30,
2008, total cash and cash equivalents was $843 million and our borrowing capacity under our Credit Facility was $1.950 billion, reflecting $50
million outstanding borrowings and no outstanding letters of credit. Our ability to maintain positive liquidity going forward depends on our ability to
continue to generate cash from operations and have access to the financial markets, both of which are subject to general economic, financial,
competitive, legislative, regulatory and other market factors that are beyond our control.

Financial Risk Management
We are exposed to market risk from foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, which could affect operating results, financial position and
cash flows. We manage our exposure to these market risks through our regular operating and financing activities and, when appropriate, through
the use of derivative financial instruments. These derivative financial instruments are utilized to hedge economic exposures as well as reduce
earnings and cash flow volatility resulting from shifts in market rates. As permitted, certain of these derivative contracts have been designated for
hedge accounting treatment under SFAS No. 133. Certain of our derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting but are effective as economic
hedges of our inventory purchases and
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currency exposure. These derivative contracts are accounted for using the mark-to-market accounting method and accordingly are exposed to
some level of volatility. Under this method, the contracts are carried at their fair value on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets within Other
assets and Other liabilities. The level of volatility will vary with the type and amount of derivative hedges outstanding, as well as fluctuations in the
currency and interest rate markets during the period. The related cash flow impact of all of our derivative activities are reflected as cash flows from
operating activities.

We enter into limited types of derivative contracts, including interest rate and cross currency interest rate swap agreements, foreign currency spot,
forward and swap contracts and net purchased foreign currency options to manage foreign currency exposures. Our primary foreign currency
market exposures include the Japanese Yen, Euro, British Pound Sterling, Canadian Dollar and Brazilian Real. The fair market values of all our
derivative contracts change with fluctuations in interest rates and/or currency rates and are designed so that any changes in their values are offset
by changes in the values of the underlying exposures. Derivative financial instruments are held solely as risk management tools and not for trading
or speculative purposes.

By their nature, all derivative instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of market and credit risk not recognized in our financial statements.
The market risk associated with these instruments resulting from currency exchange and interest rate movements is expected to offset the market
risk of the underlying transactions, assets and liabilities being hedged. We do not believe there is a significant risk of loss in the event of non-
performance by the counterparties associated with these instruments because these transactions are executed with a diversified group of major
financial institutions. Further, our policy is to deal with counterparties having a minimum investment-grade or better credit rating. Credit risk is
managed through the continuous monitoring of exposures to such counterparties.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
We have reported our financial results in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). A reconciliation of the following non-
GAAP financial measures to the most directly comparable financial measures calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP are set forth
below:

1. Adjusted Revenue: We discussed the revenue growth for the second quarter 2008 and year-to-date period of 2008 using non-GAAP financial
measures. To understand trends in the business, we believe that it is helpful to adjust the revenue growth rates to illustrate the impact of the
acquisition of GIS by including their estimated revenue for the comparable 2007 periods. We refer to this adjusted revenue as “As Adjusted” in the
following reconciliation table. Management believes these measures give investors an additional perspective on revenue trends, as well as the
impact to the Company of the acquisition of GIS that was completed in May 2007.
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30,   

Six Months
Ended June 30,

(in millions)   2008   2007   % Change  2008   2007   % Change
Equipment Sales:             

As Reported   $1,160  $1,141  2%   $2,258  $2,072  9%
As Adjusted   $1,160  $1,179  (2)%   $2,258  $2,257  —  

Post Sale Revenue:             
As Reported   $3,373  $3,067  10%   $6,610  $5,972  11%
As Adjusted   $3,373  $3,126  8%   $6,610  $6,178  7%

Total Revenues:             
As Reported   $4,533  $4,208  8%   $8,868  $8,044  10%
As Adjusted   $4,533  $4,305  5%   $8,868  $8,435  5%

Revenue “As Adjusted” adds GIS’s revenues for the period January 1st through May 8th 2007 to our 2007 reported revenue.

2. Adjusted Effective Tax Rate: The effective tax rate for the second quarter 2008 and year-to-date period of 2008 are discussed using non-GAAP
financial measures that exclude the effects of charges associated with securities-related litigation matters and restructuring. Management believes
that it is helpful to exclude these effects to
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better understand and analyze the current period’s effective tax rate given the nature and size of the litigation charge as well as its relation to prior
year events and the discrete nature of the restructuring charge.
 

   

Three Months
Ended June 30, 2008   

Six Months
Ended June 30, 2008

(in millions)   As Reported  Restructuring  As Adjusted  As Reported  

Litigation/
Restructuring  As Adjusted

Income (Loss) before Income Taxes
and Equity Income   $ 245  $ 63  $ 308  $ (273) $ 858  $ 585

                

 

       

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)   $ 59  $ 20  $ 79  $ (187) $ 324  $ 137
                

 

       

Effective Tax Rate    24.1%     25.6%   68.5%     23.4%

Management believes that these non-GAAP financial measures provide an additional means of analyzing the current period results against the
corresponding prior period results. However, all of these non-GAAP financial measures should be viewed in addition to, and not as a substitute for,
the Company’s reported results prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Item 3 Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
The information set forth under the caption “Financial Risk Management” in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is hereby incorporated by

reference in answer to this Item.

Item 4 Controls and Procedures
 

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management evaluated, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons
performing similar functions, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to ensure that information we are required to disclose in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms relating to Xerox Corporation, including our consolidated subsidiaries, and was accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons performing
similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

 

(b) Changes in Internal Controls

In connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, there was no change identified in our
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1 Legal Proceedings
The information set forth under Note 14-Contingencies contained in the “Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements” of this

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is incorporated by reference in answer to this Item.

Item 1A Risk Factors
Reference is made to the Risk Factors set forth in Part I, Item 1A of our 2007 Annual Report and Part II, Item 1A of our first quarter 2008

Form 10-Q Report. The Risk Factors remain applicable from our 2007 Annual Report and first quarter 2008 Form 10-Q Report, with the exception
of the following changes:

Our significant debt could adversely affect our financial health and pose challenges for conducting our business.
We have and will continue to have a significant amount of debt and other obligations, primarily to support our customer financing activities.

As of June 30, 2008, we had $7.9 billion of total debt ($131 million of which is secured by finance receivables) and $636 million of liability to a
subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities. The total value of financing activities, shown on the balance sheet as Finance receivables and
Equipment on operating lease, was $8.5 billion at June 30, 2008. The total cash and cash equivalents was $843 million at June 30, 2008. Our
substantial debt and other obligations could have important consequences. For example, it could (i) increase our vulnerability to general adverse
economic and industry conditions; (ii) limit our ability to obtain additional financing for future working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and
other general corporate requirements; (iii) increase our vulnerability to interest rate fluctuations because a portion of our debt has variable interest
rates; (iv) require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations to service debt and other obligations thereby reducing the
availability of our cash flows from operations for other purposes; (v) limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and
the industry in which we operate; (vi) place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and (vii) become
due and payable upon a change in control. If new debt is added to our current debt levels such as the incurrence of debt to partially fund
acquisitions, these related risks could increase.

We need to maintain adequate liquidity in order to have sufficient cash to meet operating cash flow requirements and to repay
maturing debt and other obligations. If we fail to comply with the covenants contained in our various borrowing agreements, it may
adversely affect our liquidity, results of operations and financial condition.

Our liquidity is a function of our ability to successfully generate cash flows from a combination of efficient operations and improvement
therein, access to capital markets, securitizations, funding from third parties and borrowings secured by our finance receivables portfolios. As of
June 30, 2008, total cash and cash equivalents was $843 million, and our borrowing capacity under our $2 billion Credit Facility was $1.950 billion,
reflecting $50 million outstanding borrowings. We also have funding available through a secured borrowing arrangement with General Electric
Capital Corporation (“GECC”). We believe our liquidity (including operating and other cash flows that we expect to generate) will be sufficient to
meet operating requirements as they occur; however, our ability to maintain sufficient liquidity going forward depends on our ability to generate
cash from operations and access to the capital markets, secured borrowings, securitizations and funding from third parties, all of which are subject
to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other market factors that are beyond our control.

The Credit Facility contains affirmative and negative covenants including limitations on: (i) liens of Xerox and certain of our subsidiaries
securing debt; (ii) certain fundamental changes to corporate structure; (iii) changes in nature of business; and (iv) limitations on debt incurred by
certain subsidiaries. The Credit Facility contains financial maintenance covenants, including maximum leverage (debt for borrowed money divided
by consolidated EBITDA, as defined) and a minimum interest coverage ratio (consolidated EBITDA divided by consolidated interest expense, as
defined). The indentures governing our outstanding senior notes contain affirmative and negative covenants including limitations on: issuance of
secured debt and preferred stock; investments and acquisitions; mergers; certain transactions with affiliates; creation of liens; asset transfers;
hedging transactions; payment of dividends and certain other payments. They do not, however, contain financial maintenance
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covenants, except the fixed charge coverage ratio applicable to certain types of payments. Our U.S. Loan Agreement with GECC (effective through
2010) relating to our customer financing program (the “Loan Agreement”) provides for loans secured by eligible finance receivables up to $5 billion
outstanding at any one time. As of June 30, 2008, $131 million was outstanding under the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement incorporates the
financial maintenance covenants contained in the Credit Facility and contains other affirmative and negative covenants.

At June 30, 2008, we were in full compliance with the covenants and other provisions of the Credit Facility, the senior notes and the Loan
Agreement. Any failure to be in compliance with any material provision or covenant of the Credit Facility or the senior notes could have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity, results of operations and financial condition. Failure to be in compliance with the covenants in the Loan Agreement,
including the financial maintenance covenants incorporated from the Credit Facility, would result in an event of termination under the Loan
Agreement and in such case GECC would not be required to make further loans to us. If GECC were to make no further loans to us, and assuming
a similar facility was not established and that we were unable to obtain replacement financing in the public debt markets, it could materially
adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to fund our customers’ purchases of our equipment and this could materially adversely affect our results
of operations.

Item 2 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
(a) Sales of Unregistered Securities during the Quarter ended June 30, 2008

During the quarter ended June 30, 2008, Registrant issued the following securities in transactions which were not registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”):
 

 (a) Securities issued on April 30, 2008: Registrant issued 702 Director Stock Units (“DSUs”), representing the right to receive shares of
Common Stock, par value $1 per share, at a future date.

 

 
(b) No underwriters participated. The shares were issued to each of the non-employee Directors of Registrant: Glenn A. Britt, Richard J.

Harrington, William Curt Hunter, Vernon E. Jordan, Jr., Hilmar Kopper, Ralph S. Larsen, Robert A. McDonald, N. J. Nicholas, Jr., Ann N.
Reese and Mary Agnes Wilderotter.

 

 
(c) The DSUs were issued at a deemed purchase price of $14.945 per DSU (aggregate price $10,491), based upon the market value on

the date of record, in payment of the dividend equivalents due to DSU holders pursuant to Registrant’s 2004 Equity Compensation Plan
for Non-Employee Directors.

 

 (d) Exemption from registration under the Act was claimed based upon Section 4(2) as a sale by an issuer not involving a public offering.

(b) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities during the Quarter ended June 30, 2008

Repurchases of Xerox Common Stock, par value $1.00 per Share

Board Authorized Share Repurchase Programs:
 

   

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased   

Average Price
Paid per Share(1)  

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

or Programs(2)   

Maximum Number
(or Approximate
Dollar Value) of

Shares That May
Yet Be Purchased
under the Plans
or Programs(2)

April 1 through 30   4,527,161  $ 14.2645  4,527,161  $ 971,142,073
May 1 through 31   10,217,000   14.2500  10,217,000   825,549,505
June 1 through 30   12,341,276   13.5295  12,341,276   658,578,441

          

Total   27,085,437    27,085,437  
           

(1) Exclusive of fees and costs.
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(2) Our Board of Directors previously authorized share repurchase programs totaling $2.5 billion, which have been exhausted. In each of
January 2008 and July 2008, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $1.0 billion stock repurchase program covering shares of our
common stock, par value $1.00 per share. Of the cumulative $4.5 billion of authority for share repurchases, approximately $2.8 billion of this
authority has been used through June 30, 2008. The 4.5 billion is exclusive of fees and expenses. The repurchases under these programs
may be made on the open market, or through derivative or negotiated transactions. Open-market repurchases will be made in compliance
with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 10b-18, and are subject to market conditions as well as applicable legal and other
considerations.

Repurchases Related to Stock Compensation Programs(1):
 

   

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased   

Average Price
Paid per Share(2)  

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

or Programs   

Maximum Number
(or Approximate
Dollar Value) of

Shares That May
Yet Be Purchased
under the Plans

or Programs
April 1 through 30   583  $ 14.50  n/a   n/a
May 1 through 31   4,768   13.80  n/a   n/a
June 1 through 30   6,173   14.05  n/a   n/a

           

Total   11,524    n/a   n/a
          

(1) These repurchases are made under a provision in our restricted stock compensation programs for the indirect repurchase of shares through
a net-settlement feature upon the vesting of shares in order to satisfy minimum statutory tax-withholding requirements.

 
(2) Exclusive of fees and costs.

Item 4 Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
The annual meeting of shareholders of Xerox Corporation was duly called and held on May 22, 2008 at the Hyatt Regency, 1800 East Putnam
Avenue, Old Greenwich, Connecticut. Proxies for the meeting were solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Xerox Corporation pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the General Rules and Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. There was no solicitation in opposition to the
Board of Directors’ nominees for election as directors listed in the Proxy Statement, and all director nominees were elected.

The matters that were voted upon at the meeting, and the number of votes cast as to each of the matters, where applicable, are as follows:

Proposal 1—Election of Directors:
 
Name   For   Withheld
Glenn A. Britt   758,595,319  46,700,064
Ursula M. Burns   755,970,603  49,324,780
Richard J. Harrington   758,703,193  46,592,190
William Curt Hunter   758,145,883  47,149,500
Vernon E. Jordan, Jr.   726,032,604  79,262,779
Robert A. McDonald   735,217,485  70,077,898
Anne M. Mulcahy   730,307,400  74,987,983
N. J. Nicholas, Jr.   731,986,057  73,309,326
Ann N. Reese   753,505,988  51,789,395
Mary Agnes Wilderotter   755,293,190  50,002,193

Proposal 2—Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm:
 
For—   793,329,519
Against—   2,644,409
Abstain—   9,321,455
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Proposal 3—Amendment of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation to require majority voting for the election of Directors in non-contested
elections:
 
For—   769,452,948
Against—   26,229,478
Abstain—   9,612,957

Proposal 4—Shareholder Proposal Relating to Reporting of Compliance with the Vendor Code of Conduct:
 
For—   44,137,783
Against—   577,410,160
Abstain—   98,363,731
Broker non-votes—   85,383,709

Item 6 Exhibits

Exhibit 3(a)—Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on November 7,
2003, as amended by Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation filed with the Department of State of New York on August 19,
2004, Certificate of Change filed with the Department of State of New York on October 31, 2007 and Certificate of Amendment to Certificate
of Incorporation filed with the Department of State of New York on May 29, 2008.

Exhibit 3(b)—By-Laws of Registrant, as amended through May 22, 2008.

Exhibit 12—Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Exhibit 31—(a) Certification of CEO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

(b) Certification of CFO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

Exhibit 32—Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
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Exhibit 3(a)

As Amended Through May 28, 2008

RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

XEROX CORPORATION

UNDER SECTION 807 OF THE
BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW

We, the undersigned, ANNE M. MULCAHY and LESLIE F. VARON, being respectively the Chairman of the Board and the Secretary of
XEROX CORPORATION, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that:

1. The name of the Corporation is “XEROX CORPORATION”. The name under which it was formed is “THE HALOID COMPANY”.

2. The Certificate of Incorporation was filed in the Office of the Secretary of State of the State of New York on April 18, 1906.

3. This restatement of the Certificate of Incorporation was authorized by a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation at
a meeting thereof duly called and held. The text of the Certificate of Incorporation is hereby restated without further amendment to read as herein
set forth in full:

FIRST: The name of the Corporation is XEROX CORPORATION.

SECOND: The purposes for which it is formed are as follows:

To engage in the invention, development, production, operation, sale or lease of devices, papers and other items, processes, and
services, relating to the communications, photographic, printing and image reproduction arts;

To engage in any commercial, mercantile, manufacturing, mining, industrial, importing, exporting or trading business, venture, activity or
service or other business, venture, activity or service of a kind or type described in these purposes;

To engage in scientific and technological research and pursuits of every lawful kind and description and to utilize, employ and exploit
any and all knowledge resulting therefrom;

To purchase, lease or otherwise acquire, own, hold, sell, mortgage, charge or otherwise dispose of, invest, trade and deal in and with
real and personal property of every kind and description.

THIRD: The office of the Corporation is to be located in the City of Rochester, Monroe County, New York.

FOURTH: The aggregate number of shares which the Corporation shall have the authority to issue is 1,750,000,000 shares of Common
Stock, of the par value of $1.00 each (hereinafter referred to as “Common Stock”), 600,000 shares of Class B Stock of the par value of



$1.00 each (hereinafter referred to as “Class B Stock”), and 22,043,067 shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, of the par value of $1.00 each
(hereinafter referred to as “Cumulative Preferred Stock”).

The designations, preferences, privileges and voting powers of each class of stock of the Corporation, and the restrictions and qualifications
thereof, shall be as follows:

1. The Cumulative Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time as follows:

(a) The Cumulative Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time as shares of one or more series of Cumulative Preferred Stock
and the Board of Directors is expressly authorized, prior to issuance, in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of shares in each
particular series, to fix the following:

(i) the distinctive serial designation and number of shares which shall constitute such series, which number may be increased
(except where otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in creating such series) or decreased (but not below the number of shares
thereof then outstanding) from time to time by like action of the Board of Directors;

(ii) the annual dividend rate for such series, and the date from which dividends on shares of such series shall be cumulative;

(iii) the redemption provisions and price or prices, if any, for such series, which may consist of a redemption price or scale of
redemption prices applicable only to redemption for a sinking fund and the same or a different redemption price or scale of redemption
prices applicable to any other redemption;

(iv) the amount or amounts which shall be paid to the holders of the shares of such series in the event of voluntary or involuntary
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (but not less than $1.00 in the case of involuntary liquidation);

(v) the obligation, if any, of the Corporation to retire shares of such series pursuant to a sinking fund which shall be applied to the
redemption of shares of such series;

(vi) the terms and conditions (with or without limitations), if any, on which shares of such series shall be convertible into, or
exchangeable for, shares of stock of any other class or classes, including the price or prices or at the rate or rates of conversion or
exchange and the terms and conditions of adjustment thereof, if any; and

(vii) the voting rights, if any, in addition to those specified herein, and any other preferences, privileges and restrictions or
qualifications of such series.

(b) All shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, regardless of series, shall be of equal rank with each other and shall be identical with
each other in all respects except as provided in or permitted by paragraph (a) of this subdivision 1 and except as provided in paragraph (b) of
subdivision 6; and the shares of the Cumulative Preferred Stock of any one series shall be identical with each other in all respects except as
to the dates from and after which dividends thereon shall be cumulative.
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(c) In case the stated dividends and the amounts payable on liquidation are not paid in full, the shares of all series of the Cumulative
Preferred Stock shall share ratably in the payment of dividends (including accumulations, if any) in accordance with the sums which would be
payable on said shares if all dividends were declared and paid in full, and in any distribution of assets other than by way of dividends in
accordance with the sums which would be payable on such distributions if all sums payable were discharged in full.

2. The holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock of each series shall be entitled to receive, when and as declared by the Board of Directors,
but only out of funds legally available for the payment of dividends, cumulative cash dividends at the annual rate for such series (as fixed by the
Board of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1 in respect of any series), and no more, payable quarter-yearly, on the first day of January, April,
July and October in each year, to shareholders of record on the respective dates, not exceeding forty days preceding such dividend payment
dates, fixed for the purpose by the Board of Directors in advance of payment of each particular dividend; provided that if dividends on any shares
of the Cumulative Preferred Stock shall be cumulative from a date less than thirty days prior to the first quarter-yearly dividend payment date in
respect of such shares, the dividends accrued on such shares to such date shall not be payable on such date but shall be payable on the next
following quarter-yearly dividend payment date. The holders of shares of the Cumulative Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to receive any
dividends thereon other than the dividends referred to in this subdivision 2.

As provided in paragraph (c) of subdivision 1, no dividend shall be paid upon, or declared or set apart for, any share of Cumulative Preferred
Stock of any series for any quarter-yearly dividend period (other than the first quarter-yearly dividend period for any shares if the dividend on such
shares for such period shall not then be payable pursuant to the provisions of subdivision 2) unless at the same time a like proportionate dividend
for the same quarter-yearly dividend period, ratably in proportion to the respective annual dividend rates fixed therefor, shall be paid upon, or
declared and set apart for, all shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock of all series then issued and outstanding and entitled to receive the dividend.

3. So long as any shares of the Cumulative Preferred Stock are outstanding, no dividend whatever shall be paid or declared at any time, and
no distribution made, on any junior stock (other than in junior stock) nor shall any shares of junior stock be purchased or otherwise acquired for
value or redeemed at any time by the Corporation or any subsidiary:

(a) unless all dividends on the Cumulative Preferred Stock of all series for all past quarter-yearly dividend periods (other than the first
quarter-yearly dividend period for any shares if the dividend on such shares for such period shall not then be payable pursuant to the
provisions of subdivision 2) shall have been paid and the full dividends thereon for the then current quarter-yearly dividend period shall have
been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set apart; and

(b) unless the Corporation shall have redeemed, retired or purchased all shares of each series of Cumulative Preferred Stock required
to have been redeemed, retired or purchased at such time pursuant to the sinking fund fixed for such series by the Board of Directors in
accordance with subdivision 1,

provided, however, that the foregoing restrictions in this subdivision 3 shall not apply to the acquisition of any junior stock solely in exchange for, or
solely out of the proceeds of sale of, any other junior stock.

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this subdivision 3, and to any further limitations prescribed by the Board of Directors in accordance with
subdivision 1, and not otherwise, such dividends (payable in cash, stock or otherwise) as may be determined by the Board of Directors may be
declared and paid on any junior stock from time to time out of any funds of the Corporation legally available therefor, and the Cumulative Preferred
Stock shall not be entitled to participate in any such dividends.
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4. Subject to the provisions of subdivision 5, the Corporation at its option (expressed by resolution of the Board of Directors) or for the
purpose of any sinking fund therefor may (except as otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1 in respect of
any series) redeem the outstanding shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, or of any one or more series thereof, at any time in whole, or from time
to time in part, upon notice duly given as hereinafter specified, at the applicable redemption price or prices for such shares (as fixed in accordance
with subdivision 1 in respect of any series), including, in each case, an amount equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the date fixed
for redemption.

Notice of every such redemption of Cumulative Preferred Stock of any series (a) if all the shares of such series are held of record by not
more than ten holders, shall be given by mailing such notice not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for such redemption to
each holder of record of shares of such series so to be redeemed at his address as the same shall appear on the books of the Corporation, or (b) if
all the shares of such series are held of record by more than ten holders, shall be given by publication at least once in each of two successive
calendar weeks in a newspaper printed in the English language and customarily published on each business day and of general circulation in the
Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, the first publication to be not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for such
redemption, and notice of such redemption shall also be mailed not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for such redemption,
to each holder of record of shares of such series so to be redeemed at his address as the same shall appear on the books of the Corporation; but,
if publication is required, no failure to mail any such notice nor any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall affect the validity of the proceeding
for the redemption of any shares to be redeemed.

In case of redemption of a part only of the Cumulative Preferred Stock of any series at the time outstanding, whether for the sinking fund
therefor or otherwise, the redemption may (subject to any provision made by the Board of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1 in respect of
any series) be either pro rata or by lot, as determined by the Board of Directors. Subject to the foregoing, the Board of Directors shall have full
power and authority to prescribe the manner in which the drawings by lot or the pro rata redemption shall be conducted and, subject to the
provisions contained in the Certificate of Incorporation or provided by the Board of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1, the terms and
conditions upon which the Cumulative Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to time.

If any such notice of redemption shall have been duly given and if, on or before the redemption date specified therein, all funds necessary for
such redemption shall have been set aside by the Corporation, separate and apart from its other funds, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the
holders of the shares so called for redemption, so as to be and continue to be available therefor, then, notwithstanding that any certificate for
shares so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for cancellation, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed
outstanding on and after such redemption date, and the right to receive dividends thereon and all other rights with respect to such shares shall
forthwith on such redemption date cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on redemption
thereof without interest, and the right to exercise, on or before the date fixed for redemption, all privileges of conversion or exchange, if any, not
theretofore expired.
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If any such notice of redemption shall have been duly given or if the Corporation shall have given to the bank or trust company hereinafter
referred to irrevocable written authorization promptly to give or complete such notice, and if on or before the redemption date specified therein the
funds necessary for such redemption shall have been deposited by the Corporation with a bank or trust company in good standing, designated in
such notice, organized under the laws of the United States of America or of the State of New York, doing business in the Borough of Manhattan,
The City of New York, having a capital, surplus, and undivided profits aggregating at least $5,000,000 according to its last published statement of
condition, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares so called for redemption, then, notwithstanding that any certificate for shares
so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for cancellation, from and after the time of such deposit all shares so called for
redemption shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith cease and terminate, except only
the right of the holders thereof to receive from such bank or trust company at any time after the time of such deposit the funds so deposited,
without interest, and the right to exercise, on or before the date fixed for redemption, all privileges of conversion or exchange, if any, not theretofore
expired. Any interest accrued on such funds shall be paid to the Corporation from time to time.

Any funds so set aside or deposited, as the case may be, and unclaimed at the end of six years from such redemption date shall be released
or repaid to the Corporation, after which the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to the Corporation for payment thereof;
provided that any funds so deposited which shall not be required for redemption because of the exercise of any privilege of conversion or
exchange subsequent to the date of deposit shall be repaid to the Corporation forthwith.

None of the shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock of any series redeemed or retired pursuant to the sinking fund fixed for such series by the
Board of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1, shall be reissued and all such shares shall, in the manner provided by law, be eliminated from
the authorized capital stock of the Corporation. The Corporation shall not be prohibited from reissuing any shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock
redeemed or retired (other than for the sinking fund therefor) or converted into or exchanged for stock pursuant to the provisions fixed by the Board
of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1, and after such redemption, retirement or conversion of the Corporation may, in the manner provided
by law, restore such shares to the status of authorized but unissued shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock undesignated as to series.

5. If and so long as all dividends on the Cumulative Preferred Stock of all series for all past quarter-yearly dividend periods (other than the
first quarter-yearly dividend period for any shares if the dividend on such shares for such period shall not then be payable pursuant to the
provisions of subdivision 2) shall not have been paid and the full dividends thereon for the then current quarter-yearly dividend period shall not
have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set apart, the Corporation shall not redeem (for sinking fund or otherwise)
less than all of the Cumulative Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, and neither the Corporation nor any subsidiary shall purchase or otherwise
acquire for value (for sinking fund or otherwise) any of the Cumulative Preferred Stock at the time outstanding.

6. Unless the consent of the holders of a greater number of shares shall then be required by law, the consent of the holders of at least two-
thirds of the shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, given in person or by proxy, either in writing or at any special or annual
meeting called for the purpose, at which the Cumulative Preferred Stock shall vote separately as a class, shall be necessary to permit, effect or
validate any one or more of the following:

(a) The authorization of, or any increase in the authorized amount of, any class of stock ranking prior to the Cumulative Preferred
Stock;
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(b) The amendment, alteration or repeal of any of the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, or of the By-Laws of the Corporation
which would affect adversely any right, preference, privilege or voting power of the Cumulative Preferred Stock or of the holders thereof;
provided, however, that if any such amendment, alteration or repeal would affect adversely any right, preference, privilege or voting power of
one or more, but not all, of the series of Cumulative Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the consent of the holders of at least two-thirds
of the outstanding shares of each such series so affected, similarly given, shall be required in lieu of (or if such consent is required by law, in
addition to) the consent of the holders of two-thirds of the shares of the Cumulative Preferred Stock as a class; and

(c) The voluntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, or the sale, lease or conveyance (other than by mortgage) of
all or substantially all the property or business of the Corporation, or the consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any other
corporation, except any such consolidation or merger wherein none of the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of any series of the
Cumulative Preferred Stock or the holders thereof are adversely affected.

No consent of the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock or of any series thereof which would otherwise be required to permit, effect or
validate any action of the Corporation or a subsidiary pursuant to the provisions of this subdivision 6 or pursuant to any provision fixed by the
Board of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1 shall be required if, prior to or concurrently with such action, provision shall be made in
accordance with the provisions of the fourth paragraph of subdivision 4 for the redemption of all outstanding shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock
or all outstanding shares of such series, as the case may be, and all funds necessary for such redemption shall be deposited in trust in accordance
with the provisions of such paragraph.

7. Unless and until six quarter-yearly dividends on the Cumulative Preferred Stock of any series shall be in default, in whole or in part, the
entire voting power, except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws, shall be vested exclusively in the Common Stock
in accordance with the provisions of, and except as otherwise expressly provided in, the Certificate of Incorporation. If and whenever six full
quarter-yearly dividends (whether or not consecutive) payable on the Cumulative Preferred Stock of any series shall be in arrears, in whole or in
part, the number of Directors then constituting the Board of Directors shall be increased by two and the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock,
voting separately as a class, regardless of series, shall be entitled to elect the two additional directors at any annual meeting of shareholders or
special meeting held in place thereof, or at a special meeting of the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock called as hereinafter provided.
Whenever all arrears in dividends on the Cumulative Preferred Stock then outstanding shall have been paid and dividends thereon for the current
quarter-yearly dividend period shall have been paid or declared and set apart for payment, then the right of the holders of the Cumulative Preferred
Stock to elect such additional two Directors shall cease (but subject always to the same provisions for the vesting of such voting rights in the case
of any similar future arrearages in dividends), and the terms of office of all persons elected as Directors by the holders of the Cumulative Preferred
Stock shall forthwith terminate and the number of the Board of Directors shall be reduced accordingly. At any time after such voting power shall
have been so vested in the Cumulative Preferred Stock, the Secretary of the Corporation may, and upon the written request of any holder of the
Cumulative Preferred Stock (addressed to the Secretary at the
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principal office of the Corporation) shall, call a special meeting of the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock for the election of the two Directors
to be elected by them as herein provided, such call to be made by notice similar to that provided in the By-Laws for a special meeting of the
shareholders or as required by law. If any such special meeting required to be called as above provided shall not be called by the Secretary within
twenty days after receipt of any such request, then any holder of Cumulative Preferred Stock may call such meeting, upon the notice above
provided, and for that purpose shall have access to the stock books of the Corporation. The Directors elected at any such special meeting shall
hold office until the next annual meeting of the shareholders or special meeting held in place thereof. In case any vacancy shall occur among the
Directors elected by the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock, a successor shall be elected to serve until the next annual meeting of the
shareholders or special meeting held in place thereof by the then remaining Director elected by the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock or
the successor of such remaining Director.

In any case in which the holders of Cumulative Preferred Stock or any series thereof shall be entitled to vote pursuant to the provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation or pursuant to law, each holder of Cumulative Preferred Stock or of such series, as the case may be, shall be entitled to
one vote for each share thereof held.

8. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock of each series
shall be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Corporation, before any distribution or payment shall be made to the holders of any junior stock,
(i) if such liquidation, dissolution or winding up shall be involuntary, the amount fixed by the Board of Directors in accordance with subdivision 1 but
not less than $1.00, and (ii) if such liquidation, dissolution or winding up shall be voluntary, the amount per share fixed by the Board of Directors in
accordance with the provisions of subdivision 1 in the case of any series of Cumulative Preferred Stock, in effect at the time thereof, together with,
in each case, all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the date fixed for the payment of such distributive amounts; and the holders of the junior
stock shall be entitled, to the exclusion of the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock of any and all series, to share ratably in all the remaining
assets of the Corporation in accordance with their respective rights. As provided in paragraph (c) of subdivision 1, if upon any liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, the assets available for distribution shall be insufficient to pay the
holders of all outstanding shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock the full amounts to which they respectively shall be entitled, the holders of shares
of Cumulative Preferred Stock of all series shall share ratably in any distribution of assets in accordance with the sums which would be payable on
such distribution if all sums payable were discharged in full. Neither the consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any other
corporation, nor any sale, lease or conveyance of all or any part of the property or business of the Corporation, shall be deemed to be a liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation within the meaning of this subdivision 8.

9. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Certificate of Incorporation and except as otherwise provided by law, voting rights upon any
and all matters shall be vested exclusively in the holders of the Common Stock and the Class B Stock (each share of Common Stock and of Class
B Stock having one vote).

10. No holder of Common Stock, Cumulative Preferred Stock or Class B Stock shall be entitled as such, as a matter of right, to subscribe for
or purchase any part of any new or additional issue of stock of any class whatsoever, or of any obligations or other securities convertible into, or
exchangeable for, any stock of any class whatsoever, whether now or hereafter authorized and whether issued for cash or other consideration or
by way of dividend.
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11. The holders of Common Stock and of Class B Stock shall possess equal voting rights and rights as to dividends or distributions, and in
the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation. No dividend, distribution, split-up, combination, reclassification, or other
change in the shares of Common Stock shall be made without the same being made with respect to the Class B Stock.

12. For all purposes of the Certificate of Incorporation:

The term “accrued and unpaid dividends” when used with reference to any share of any series of the Cumulative Preferred Stock shall
mean an amount computed at the annual dividend rate for the shares of such series from the date on which dividends on such share became
cumulative to and including the date to which such dividends are to be accrued, less the aggregate amount of all dividends theretofore paid
on such share; but no interest shall be payable upon any arrearages.

The term “Certificate of Incorporation” shall mean the certificate of incorporation of the Corporation as amended and supplemented by
any certificate heretofore or hereafter filed pursuant to law, including any certificate filed pursuant to law with respect to, and providing for the
issue of, any series of Cumulative Preferred Stock.

The term “junior stock”, when used with reference to the Cumulative Preferred Stock, shall mean the Common Stock, the Class B Stock
and any other stock of the Corporation, now or hereafter authorized, over which the Cumulative Preferred Stock has preference or priority
either in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation.

The term “sinking fund”, as applied to any series of preferred stock, shall mean any fund or requirement for the periodic redemption,
retirement or purchase of shares of such series.

The term “stock ranking prior to the Cumulative Preferred Stock” shall mean any stock of the Corporation, now or hereafter authorized,
which has preference over the Cumulative Preferred Stock either in the payment of dividends or in any liquidation, dissolution or winding up
of the Corporation.

THE SERIES A CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK

13.(a) The distinctive serial designation of the second series of Cumulative Preferred Stock is “Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock”
(hereinafter called “Series A Preferred Stock”).

(b) The number of shares constituting the Series A Preferred Stock is 1,500,000 shares.

(c) The quarterly dividend rate for the Series A Preferred Stock is an amount per share (rounded to the nearest cent) equal to the
greater of (i) $10.00 or (ii) subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth, 100 times the aggregate per share amount of all cash
dividends, and 100 times the aggregate per share amount (payable in kind) of all noncash dividends or other distributions other than a
dividend payable in shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock or a subdivision of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock
(by reclassification or otherwise), declared on the Common Stock or Class B Stock of the Corporation since the immediately preceding
quarterly dividend payment date, or, with respect to the first quarterly dividend payment date, since the first
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issuance of any share or fraction of a share of Series A Preferred Stock. In the event the Corporation shall at any time after April 16, 1987
declare or pay any dividend on Common Stock or Class B Stock payable in shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock, or effect a
subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock (by reclassification or otherwise
than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock or
Class B Stock, then in each such case the amount to which holders of Series A Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event
under clause (ii) of the preceding sentence shall be adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number
of shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator of which is the number of
shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

The Corporation shall declare a dividend or distribution on the Series A Preferred Stock as provided in this paragraph (c) immediately
after it declares a dividend or distribution on the Common Stock or Class B Stock; provided that, in the event no dividend or distribution shall
have been declared on the Common Stock or Class B Stock during the period between any quarterly dividend payment date and the next
subsequent quarterly dividend payment date, a dividend of $10.00 per share on the Series A Preferred Stock shall nevertheless be payable
on such subsequent quarterly dividend payment date.

Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative on outstanding Series A Preferred Stock from the date of issue of such shares of
Series A Preferred Stock.

(d) Except as prescribed by law and in addition to the rights provided for in Section 7 of Article FOURTH of the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation and in paragraph (i) of this Section 13, and subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth, the
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to one vote for each share held and shall be entitled to exercise such voting rights
with the holders of Common Stock and Class B Stock, without distinction as to class, at any annual or special meeting of shareholders for the
election of directors and on any other matter coming before such meeting.

(e) Any Series A Preferred Stock purchased or otherwise acquired by the Corporation in any manner whatsoever shall be retired and
cancelled promptly after the acquisition thereof. All such shares shall upon their cancellation become authorized but unissued Cumulative
Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Cumulative Preferred Stock to be created by resolution or resolutions of the
Board of Directors, subject to the conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth herein.

(f)(i) Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, no distribution shall be made to the
holders of junior stock unless, prior thereto, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall have received the greater of (i) $100.00 per share,
plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions thereon, whether or not declared, to the date of such payment, or
(ii) an amount per share which shall be determined by (A) dividing (1) the value of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to
shareholders, less the amount to be paid upon liquidation, dissolution, or winding up to the holders of all other series of stock ranking on a
parity with the Series A Preferred Stock, by (2) the sum of the number of one-hundredths shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding as
of the date of such event plus the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Stock, as adjusted by multiplying such number of shares
of Common Stock and Class B Stock outstanding as of the date of such event by the Adjustment Number
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(as defined below), and (B) multiplying the result obtained in clause (A) by 100, (the “Series A Preferred Stock Liquidation Preference”).
Following the payment of the full amount of the Series A Preferred Stock Liquidation Preference, no additional distributions shall be made to
the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock. Following the payment of the full amount of the Series A Preferred Stock Liquidation
Preference in respect of all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock holders of Common Stock and Class B Stock shall receive their
ratable and proportionate share of the remaining assets to be distributed, on a per share basis.

(ii) In the event, however, that there are not sufficient assets available to permit payment in full of the Series A Preferred Stock
Liquidation Preference and the liquidation preferences of all other series of stock ranking on a parity upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up with the Series A Preferred Stock, then such remaining assets shall be distributed ratably to the holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock and such other series of parity stock in proportion to the total amounts to which the holders of all such shares are
entitled upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

(iii) The Adjustment Number as of the date of this Certificate of Amendment shall be one (1). In the event the Corporation shall at
any time after April 16, 1987 declare or pay any dividend on Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock, or
effect a subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock (by reclassification or
otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of
Common Stock or Class B Stock, then in each such case the Adjustment Number in effect immediately prior to such event shall be
adjusted by multiplying such Adjustment Number by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock and
Class B Stock outstanding immediately prior to such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock
and Class B Stock that were outstanding immediately after such event.

(iv) The merger or consolidation of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or the merger or consolidation of any other
corporation with or into the Corporation, or the sale, transfer, exchange or conveyance by the Corporation of all or substantially all the
assets of the Corporation, as an entirety, shall not be deemed to be a liquidation for purposes of paragraph (f) of this Section 13.

(g) In case the Corporation shall enter into any consolidation, merger, combination or other transaction in which the shares of Common
Stock or Class B Stock are exchanged for or changed into other stock or securities, cash and/or any other property, then in any such case
the Series A Preferred Stock shall at the same time be similarly exchanged or changed in an amount per share (subject to the provision for
adjustment hereinafter set forth) equal to 100 times the aggregate amount of stock, securities, cash and/or any other property (payable in
kind), as the case may be, into which or for which each share of Common Stock or Class B Stock is changed or exchanged. In the event the
Corporation shall at any time after April 16, 1987 declare or pay any dividend on Common Stock or Class B Stock payable in shares of
Common Stock or Class B Stock, or effect a subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or
Class B Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock) into a greater or
lesser number of shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock, then in each such case the amount set forth in the preceding
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sentence with respect to the exchange or change of Series A Preferred Stock shall be adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction the
numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the
denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

(h) The Series A Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable.

(i) Series A Preferred Stock may be issued in fractions of a share which shall entitle the holder, in proportion to such holder’s fractional
shares, to exercise voting rights, receive dividends, participate in liquidating distributions and to have the benefit of all other rights of holders
of Series A Preferred Stock.

(j) The Series A Preferred Stock is not convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares of stock of any other class.

THE 6.25% SERIES C MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

14.(a) Designation and Ranking. The distinctive serial designation of the sixth series of Cumulative Preferred Stock shall be called the
“6.25% Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock” and is hereinafter referred to as the “Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock”;
and the number of shares constituting the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be 9,200,000 shares. The Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock shall rank, with respect to dividend distributions and distributions upon the dissolution, liquidation and winding-up of
the Corporation, (i) senior to the common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the Corporation (the “Common Stock”) and the class B common
stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the Corporation (the “Class B Common Stock”) and to each other class or series of stock of the Corporation
(including any series of Cumulative Preferred Stock established after June 25, 2003 by the Board of Directors), now or hereafter existing, the terms
of which do not expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior to or pari passu with the Series C Senior Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock as to dividend distributions and distributions upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company (collectively referred to
as “Junior Securities”); (ii) pari passu with the Corporation’s Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Convertible Preferred Stock” and
together, with the “Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock,” the “Cumulative Preferred Stock”) and with each other class or series of stock
of the Corporation, now or hereafter existing, the terms of which expressly provide that such class or series will rank pari passu with the Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as to dividend distributions and distributions upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation
(collectively referred to as “Parity Securities”); and (iii) junior to each other class or series of stock of the Corporation, now or hereafter existing, the
terms of which expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior to the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as to dividend
distributions and distributions upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation (collectively referred to as “Senior Securities”).

(b) Dividends.

(i) General. Dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be payable quarterly, when, as and if declared
by the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof, out of the assets of the Corporation legally available therefor, on the
first calendar day (or the following Business Day if the first calendar day is not a Business Day) of January, April, July and October of
each year

 
11



(each such date being referred to herein as a “Dividend Payment Date”) at the annual rate of $6.25 per share subject to adjustment as
provided in Section 18(l)(ii). The initial dividend on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for the dividend period
commencing on June 25, 2003, to but excluding October 1, 2003, will be $1.6667, and shall be payable, when, as and if declared, on
October 1, 2003. The dividend on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for each subsequent dividend period shall be
$1.5625 per share. The amount of dividends payable on each share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for each full
quarterly period thereafter shall be computed by dividing the annual dividend rate by four. The amount of dividends payable for any
other period that is shorter or longer than a full quarterly dividend period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of
twelve 30-day months.

A dividend period with respect to a Dividend Payment Date is the period commencing on the preceding Dividend Payment Date
or, if none, the date of issue and ending on the day immediately prior to the next Dividend Payment Date. Dividends payable, when, as
and if declared, on a Dividend Payment Date shall be payable to Holders (as defined below) of record on the date not exceeding forty
calendar days preceding the relevant Dividend Payment Date, fixed by the Board of Directors in advance of payment of the relevant
dividend (each, a “Dividend Record Date”).

Dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be cumulative if the Corporation fails to declare one or
more dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock in any amount, whether or not there are assets of the
Corporation legally available for the payment of such dividends in whole or in part.

The Corporation may pay dividends, at its sole option, (a) in cash, (b) by delivering shares of Common Stock to the Transfer
Agent (as defined below) on behalf of the Holders, to be sold on the Holders’ behalf for cash or (c) in any combination thereof. By and
upon acquiring the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock each Holder is deemed to appoint the Transfer Agent as such
Holder’s agent for any such sale, and the Transfer Agent shall serve as a designated agent of the Holders in making any such sales. To
pay dividends in shares of Common Stock, the Corporation must deliver to the Transfer Agent a number of shares of Common Stock
which, when sold by the Transfer Agent on the Holders’ behalf, will result in net cash proceeds to be distributed to the Holders in an
amount equal to the cash dividend otherwise payable to the Holders.

If the Corporation pays dividends in shares of Common Stock by delivering them to the Transfer Agent, those shares shall be
owned beneficially by the Holders upon delivery to the Transfer Agent, and the Transfer Agent shall hold those shares and the net cash
proceeds from the sale of those shares up to the amount of such dividends for the exclusive benefit of the Holders until the Dividend
Payment Date, or such other date as is fixed by the Board of Directors pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the last
paragraph of this Section 18(b)(i), at which time the portion of such net cash proceeds equal to the non-cash component of the
declared dividend on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be distributed to the Holders entitled thereto with any
remainder to be returned to the Company.

 
12



Holders shall not be entitled to any dividend, whether payable in cash, property or stock, in excess of the then applicable full
dividends calculated pursuant to this Section 15(b)(i) (including accrued dividends, if any) on shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock. No interest or sum of money in lieu of interest shall be payable in respect of any dividend or payment which may be in
arrears.

(ii) In order to pay dividends on any Dividend Payment Date, or such other date as is fixed by the Board of Directors or a duly
authorized committee thereof pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the last paragraph of Section 15(b)(i) hereof, in shares of
Common Stock, (A) the shares of Common Stock delivered to the Transfer Agent shall have been duly authorized, (B) the Corporation
shall have provided to the Transfer Agent an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the
rules and regulations thereunder (the “Securities Act”) permitting the immediate sale of the shares of Common Stock in the public
market, (C) the shares of Common Stock, once purchased by the purchasers thereof, shall be validly issued, fully paid and non-
assessable and (D) such shares shall have been registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules
and regulations thereunder, if required, and shall be listed or admitted for trading on each United States securities exchange on which
the Common Stock is then listed.

(c) Liquidation Preference. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation, the
Holders shall be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to shareholders, before any distribution or
payment of assets is made on any Junior Securities, $100.00 per share, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 15(l)(ii) hereof, plus an
amount equal to the sum of all accrued and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) for the then-current dividend period and all dividend
periods prior thereto.

Neither the sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of the property or business of the Corporation (other than in connection
with the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation), nor the consolidation, or merger of the Corporation
into or with any other Person, shall constitute a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation for the
purposes of the foregoing paragraph.

In the event the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to the holders of Cumulative Preferred Stock upon any voluntary or
involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation shall be insufficient to pay in full all amounts to which such holders are
entitled as provided above, the holders of shares of the Cumulative Preferred Stock, including the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock, shall share ratably in any distribution of assets of the Corporation based on the relative aggregate liquidation preference of the
outstanding shares of each series.

After the payment to the Holders of the full preferential amounts provided above, the Holders will have no right or claim to any
remaining assets of the Corporation.

(d) Voting Rights.

(i) The Holders shall have no voting rights, except as otherwise set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation or as
expressly required by applicable state law. In exercising any such vote, each outstanding share of Series C Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to one vote.
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(ii) Unless the consent of the holders of a greater number of shares shall then be required by law, the consent of the holders of at
least two-thirds of the shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, including the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, at the time
outstanding, given in person or by proxy, either in writing or at any special or annual meeting called for the purpose, at which the
Cumulative Preferred Stock, including the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, shall vote separately as a class, shall be
necessary to permit, effect or validate any one or more of the following:

(1) The authorization of, or any increase in the authorized amount of any class of stock ranking prior to the Cumulative
Preferred Stock, including the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.

(2) The amendment, alteration or repeal of any of the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, or of the By-Laws of the
Corporation, in either case by way of merger, consolidation or otherwise, which would affect adversely any right, preference,
privilege or voting power of the Cumulative Preferred Stock, including the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, or
the holders thereof; provided, however, that if any such amendment, alteration or repeal would affect adversely any right,
preference, privilege or voting power of one or more, but not all, of the series of Cumulative Preferred Stock, including the
Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, at the time outstanding, the consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the
outstanding shares of each such series so affected, similarly given, shall be required in lieu of (or if such consent is required by
law, in addition to) the consent of the holders of two-thirds of the shares of the Cumulative Preferred Stock, including the Series
C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, as a class; or

(3) The voluntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, or the sale, lease or conveyance (other than by
mortgage) of all or substantially all the property or business of the Corporation, or the consolidation or merger of the
Corporation with or into any other corporation, except any such consolidation or merger wherein none of the rights, preferences,
privileges or voting powers of any series of the Cumulative Preferred Stock or the holders thereof are adversely affected.

(e) Automatic Conversion. Each share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock will automatically convert (unless previously
converted at the option of the Corporation in accordance with Section 15(f) or at the option of the Holder in accordance with Section 15(g), or
a Merger Early Conversion has occurred in accordance with Section 15(h)), on July 1, 2006 (the “Automatic Conversion Date”), into a
number of newly issued shares of Common Stock equal to the number of shares of Common Stock resulting from the application of the
Conversion Rate (as defined in Section 18(i) below). The Holders on the Automatic Conversion Date shall have the right to receive a
dividend payment of cash, shares of Common Stock, or any combination thereof, as the Corporation determines in its sole discretion, in an
amount equal to any accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as of the Automatic Conversion
Date (other than previously declared dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock payable to a Holder of record as of a
prior date), whether or not declared, out of legally available assets of the Corporation. To the extent the Corporation pays some or all of such
dividend in shares of Common Stock, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable to a Holder in respect of such accrued and unpaid
dividends shall equal the
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amount of accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock on the Automatic Conversion Date that the
Corporation determines to pay in shares of Common Stock divided by the 5-Day Average Market Price (as defined below).

Dividends on the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall cease to accrue and such shares of Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall cease to be outstanding on the Automatic Conversion Date. The Corporation shall make such
arrangements as it deems appropriate for the issuance of certificates, if any, representing shares of Common Stock (both for purposes of the
automatic conversion of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and for purposes of any dividend payment by the
Corporation of shares of Common Stock in respect of accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock), and for any payment of cash in respect of accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or
cash in lieu of fractional shares, if any, in exchange for and contingent upon the surrender of certificates representing the shares of Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (if such shares are held in certificated form), and the Corporation may defer the payment of dividends
on such shares of Common Stock and the voting thereof until, and make such payment and voting contingent upon, the surrender of such
certificates representing the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, provided, however, that the Corporation shall give
the Holders such notice of any such actions as the Corporation deems appropriate and upon such surrender such Holders shall be entitled to
receive such dividends declared and paid on such shares of Common Stock subsequent to the Automatic Conversion Date. Amounts
payable in cash in respect of the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or in respect of such shares of Common Stock
shall not bear interest.

(f) Provisional Conversion at the Option of the Corporation.

(i) Prior to the Automatic Conversion Date, the Corporation may, at its option, cause the conversion of all, but not less than all, the
shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding into shares of Common Stock at a rate of 8.1301 shares of
Common Stock for each share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Provisional Conversion Rate”), subject to
adjustment as set forth in Section 15(i)(ii) below (as though references in Section 15(i)(ii) to the Conversion Rate were replaced with
references to the Provisional Conversion Rate); provided, however, that the Closing Price of the Common Stock has exceeded 150%
of the Threshold Appreciation Price (as defined below) for at least 20 Trading Days (as defined below) within a period of 30
consecutive Trading Days ending on the Trading Day prior to the date on which the Corporation notifies the Holders (pursuant to
Section 15(f)(ii)) that it is exercising its option to cause the conversion of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant
to this Section 15(f) (the “Provisional Conversion Notice Date”). The Corporation shall be able to cause this conversion only if, in
addition to issuing the Holders shares of Common Stock, the Corporation pays the Holders in cash (a) an amount equal to any accrued
and unpaid dividends on the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding, whether or not declared, and
(b) the present value of all remaining dividend payments on the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock then
outstanding, through and including July 1, 2006, in each case, out of legally available assets of the Corporation. The present value of
the remaining dividend payments will be computed using a discount rate equal to the Treasury Yield.
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(ii) A written notice (the “Provisional Conversion Notice”) shall be sent by or on behalf of the Corporation, by first class mail,
postage prepaid, to the Holders of record as they appear on the stock register of the Corporation on the Provisional Conversion Notice
Date (a) notifying such Holders of the election of the Corporation to convert and of the Provisional Conversion Date (as defined below),
which date shall not be less than 30 days nor be more than 60 days after the Provisional Conversion Notice Date, and (b) stating the
Corporate Trust Office of the Transfer Agent at which the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock called for
conversion shall, upon presentation and surrender of the certificate(s) (if such shares are held in certificated form) evidencing such
shares, be converted, and the Provisional Conversion Rate to be applied thereto.

(iii) The Corporation shall deliver to the Transfer Agent irrevocable written instructions authorizing the Transfer Agent, on behalf
and at the expense of the Corporation, to cause the Provisional Conversion Notice to be duly mailed as soon as practicable after
receipt of such irrevocable instructions from the Corporation and in accordance with the above provisions. The shares of Common
Stock to be issued upon conversion of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 15(f) and all funds
necessary for the payment in cash of (1) any accrued and unpaid dividends on the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock then outstanding, whether or not declared, and (2) the present value of all remaining dividend payments on the shares of Series
C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding through and including July 1, 2006, shall be deposited with the Transfer
Agent in trust at least one Business Day prior to the Provisional Conversion Date, for the pro rata benefit of the Holders of record as
they appear on the stock register of the Corporation, so as to be and continue to be available therefor. Neither failure to mail such
Provisional Conversion Notice to one or more such Holders nor any defect in such Provisional Conversion Notice shall affect the
sufficiency of the proceedings for conversion as to other Holders.

(iv) If a Provisional Conversion Notice shall have been given as hereinbefore provided, then each Holder shall be entitled to all
preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights accorded by this certificate until and including the Provisional
Conversion Date. From and after the Provisional Conversion Date, upon delivery by the Corporation of the Common Stock and
payment of the funds to the Transfer Agent as described in paragraph (iii) above, the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock
shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding, and all rights of such Holders shall cease and terminate, except the right of the Holders,
upon surrender of certificates therefor, to receive Common Stock and any amounts to be paid hereunder.

(v) The deposit of monies in trust with the Transfer Agent up to the amount necessary for the Provisional Conversion shall be
irrevocable except that the Corporation shall be entitled to receive from the Transfer Agent the interest or other earnings, if any, earned
on any monies so deposited in trust, and the Holders of the shares converted shall have no claim to such interest or other earnings,
and any balance of monies so deposited by the Corporation and unclaimed by the Holders entitled thereto at the expiration of two
years from the Provisional Conversion Date shall be repaid, together with any interest or other earnings thereon, to the Corporation,
and after any such repayment, the Holders of the shares entitled to the funds so repaid to the Corporation shall look only to the
Corporation for such payment without interest.
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(g) Early Conversion at the Option of the Holder.
(i) Shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible, in whole or in part, at the option of the Holders

thereof (“Optional Conversion”), at any time prior to the Automatic Conversion Date, into shares of Common Stock at a rate of 8.1301
shares of Common Stock for each share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Optional Conversion Rate”), subject
to adjustment as set forth in Section 15(i)(ii) below (as though references in Section 15(i)(ii) to the Conversion Rate were replaced with
references to the Optional Conversion Rate).

(ii) Optional Conversion of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock may be effected by delivering certificates
evidencing such shares (if such shares are held in certificated form), together with written notice of conversion and a proper
assignment of such certificates to the Corporation or in blank (and, if applicable, payment of an amount equal to the dividend payable
on such shares pursuant to paragraph (iii) below), to the Corporate Trust Office of the Transfer Agent for the Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock or to any other office or agency maintained by the Corporation for that purpose. Each Optional Conversion
shall be deemed to have been effected immediately prior to the close of business on the date on which the foregoing requirements
shall have been satisfied.

(iii) Holders of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock at the close of business on a Dividend Record Date
shall be entitled to receive the dividend payable on such shares on the corresponding Dividend Payment Date (if such dividend has
been declared) notwithstanding the Optional Conversion of such shares following such Dividend Record Date and prior to such
Dividend Payment Date. However, shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock surrendered for Optional Conversion
after the close of business on a Dividend Record Date and before the opening of business on the corresponding Dividend Payment
Date must be accompanied by payment in cash of an amount equal to the dividend payable on such shares on such Dividend Payment
Date. Except as provided above, upon any Optional Conversion of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, the
Corporation shall make no payment or allowance for unpaid preferred dividends, whether or not in arrears, on such shares of Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as to which Optional Conversion has been effected or for dividends or distributions on the
shares of Common Stock issued upon such Optional Conversion.

(h) Early Conversion upon Cash Merger.
(i) In the event of a merger or consolidation of the Corporation of the type described in Section 15(i)(iii)(1) in which the Common

Stock outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation is exchanged for consideration consisting of at least 30% cash or
cash equivalents (any such event a “Cash Merger”), then the Corporation (or the successor to the Corporation hereunder) shall be
required to offer all Holders of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock that remain outstanding after the Cash
Merger (if any) the right to convert their shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock prior to the Automatic Conversion
Date (“Merger Early Conversion”) as provided herein.

On or before the fifth Business Day after the consummation of a Cash Merger, the Corporation or, at the request and expense of
the Corporation, the Transfer Agent shall give all Holders notice of the occurrence of the Cash Merger and of the
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right of Merger Early Conversion arising as a result thereof. The Corporation shall also deliver a copy of such notice to the Transfer
Agent. Each such notice shall contain:

(1) the date, which shall be not less than 20 nor more than 30 calendar days after the date of such notice, on which the
Merger Early Conversion will be effected (the “Merger Early Conversion Date”);

(2) the date, which shall be on or one Business Day prior to the Merger Early Conversion Date, by which the Merger Early
Conversion right must be exercised;

(3) the Conversion Rate (as adjusted pursuant to Section 15(i)(ii)) in effect immediately before such Cash Merger and the
kind and amount of securities, cash and other property receivable by the Holder upon conversion of its shares of Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant to Section 15(i)(iii); and

(4) the instructions a Holder must follow to exercise the Merger Early Conversion right.

(ii) To exercise a Merger Early Conversion right, a Holder shall deliver to the Transfer Agent at the Corporate Trust Office (as
defined below) by 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on or before the date by which the Merger Settlement right must be exercised as
specified in the notice, the certificate(s) (if such shares are held in certificated form) evidencing the shares of Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock with respect to which the Merger Early Conversion right is being exercised duly endorsed for transfer to
the Corporation or in blank with a written notice to the Corporation stating the Holder’s intention to convert early in connection with the
Cash Merger and providing the Corporation with payment instructions.

(iii) On the Merger Early Conversion Date, the Corporation shall deliver or cause to be delivered the cash, securities and other
property to be received by such exercising Holder determined by assuming the Holder had converted the shares of Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for which such Merger Early Conversion right was exercised into Common Stock immediately
before the Cash Merger at the Conversion Rate (as adjusted pursuant to Section 15(i)(ii)).

(iv) Upon a Merger Early Conversion, the Transfer Agent shall, in accordance with the instructions provided by the Holder thereof
on the notice provided to the Corporation as set forth in paragraph (ii) above, deliver to the Holder such cash, securities or other
property issuable upon such Merger Early Conversion together with payment in lieu of any fractional shares, as provided herein.

(v) In the event that Merger Early Conversion is effected with respect to shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock representing less than all the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock held by a Holder, upon such Merger
Early Conversion the Corporation (or the successor to the Corporation hereunder) shall execute and the Transfer Agent shall
authenticate, countersign and deliver to the Holder thereof, at the expense of the Corporation, a certificate evidencing the shares as to
which Merger Early Conversion was not effected.
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(i) Definition of Conversion Rate; Anti-dilution Adjustments.

(i) Subject to the immediately following sentence, the “Conversion Rate” is equal to:

(1) if the 20-Day Average Market Price is greater than or equal to $12.30 (the “Threshold Appreciation Price”), 8.1301
shares of Common Stock per share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock;

(2) if the 20-Day Average Market Price is less than the Threshold Appreciation Price, but is greater than $10.25, the
number of shares of Common Stock per share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock equal to $100.00 (the “Stated
Amount”) divided by the 20-Day Average Market Price; and

(3) if the 20-Day Average Market Price is equal to or less than $10.25, 9.7561 shares of Common Stock per share of
Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock,

in each case subject to adjustment as provided in Section 15(i)(ii) (and in each case rounded upward or downward to the nearest
1/10,000th of a share). In each of the clauses in the immediately preceding sentence, the number of newly issued shares of Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of each share of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock on the Automatic Conversion
Date in respect of a conversion pursuant to Section 18(e) shall be increased by an amount equal to any accrued and unpaid dividends
on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock on the Automatic Conversion Date (taking into account any payment of such
dividends on the Automatic Conversion Date) divided by the 20-Day Average Market Price.

(ii) In connection with the Conversion Rate as set forth in Section 15(i)(i), the formula for determining the Conversion Rate and the
number of shares of Common Stock to be delivered on any conversion date on an early conversion as set forth in Section 15(f), (g) or
(h) shall be subject to the following adjustments:

(1) Stock Dividends. In case the Corporation shall pay or make a dividend or other distribution on the Common Stock or
Class B Common Stock in Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, the Conversion Rate, as in effect at the opening of
business on the day following the date fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such dividend or other
distribution, shall be increased by dividing such Conversion Rate by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of
shares of Common Stock and Class B Common Stock outstanding at the close of business on the date fixed for such
determination and the denominator shall be the sum of such number of shares and the total number of shares constituting such
dividend or other distribution, such increase to become effective immediately after the opening of business on the day following
the date fixed for such determination.

(2) Stock Purchase Rights. In case the Corporation shall issue to all holders of its Common Stock and/or Class B Common
Stock (such issuance not being available on an equivalent basis to Holders of the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock upon conversion) (1) rights, options or warrants entitling them to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common
Stock
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or Class B Common Stock, or (2) securities convertible or exchangeable into shares of Common Stock or Class B Common
Stock or rights, options or warrants to purchase or acquire securities convertible or exchangeable into shares of Common Stock
or Class B Common Stock, in each case at a price per share of Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, as applicable, less
than the Current Market Price on the date fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such rights, options,
warrants or securities (other than pursuant to a dividend reinvestment, share purchase or similar plan), the Conversion Rate in
effect at the opening of business on the day following the date fixed for such determination shall be increased by dividing such
Conversion Rate by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Common
Stock outstanding at the close of business on the date fixed for such determination plus the number of shares of Common
Stock and Class B Common Stock, as applicable, which the aggregate consideration expected to be received by the
Corporation upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of such rights, options, warrants or securities (as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors, whose determination shall be conclusive and described in a Board Resolution) would purchase
at such Current Market Price and the denominator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B
Common Stock outstanding at the close of business on the date fixed for such determination plus the number of shares of
Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, as applicable, so offered for subscription or purchase, either directly or indirectly, or
into which such securities are convertible or exchangeable, such increase to become effective immediately after the opening of
business on the day following the date fixed for such determination.

(3) Stock Subdivisions, Splits, Reclassifications and Combinations. In case outstanding shares of Common Stock and/or
Class B Common Stock shall be subdivided, split or reclassified into a greater number of shares of Common Stock or Class B
Common Stock, respectively, the Conversion Rate in effect at the opening of business on the day following the day upon which
such subdivision, split or reclassification becomes effective shall be proportionately increased, and, conversely, in case
outstanding shares of Common Stock and/or Class B Common Stock shall each be combined or reclassified into a smaller
number of shares of Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, respectively, the Conversion Rate in effect at the opening of
business on the day following the day upon which such combination or reclassification becomes effective shall be
proportionately reduced, such increase or reduction, as the case may be, to become effective immediately after the opening of
business on the day following the day upon which such subdivision, split, reclassification or combination becomes effective.

(4) Debt, Asset or Security Distributions.

(A) In case the Corporation shall, by dividend or otherwise, distribute to all holders of its Common Stock and/or Class
B Common Stock evidences of its indebtedness, assets or securities (but excluding (w) any rights, options, warrants or
securities referred to in Section 15(i)(ii)(2), (x) any dividend or distribution paid exclusively in cash, (y) any dividend,
shares of capital stock of any class or series, or similar equity interests, of or relating to a subsidiary or other business unit
in the case of a Spin-
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Off referred to in Section 15(i)(ii)(4)(B), or (z) any dividend or distribution referred to in Section 15(i)(ii)(1)), the Conversion
Rate shall be increased by dividing the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the close of business on the date
fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution by a fraction, the numerator of which shall
be the Current Market Price on the date fixed for such determination less the then fair market value (as determined in
good faith by the Board of Directors, whose determination shall be conclusive and described in a Board Resolution) of the
portion of the assets or evidences of indebtedness so distributed applicable to one share of Common Stock or Class B
Common Stock, as the case may be, and the denominator of which shall be such Current Market Price, such adjustment
to become effective immediately prior to the opening of business on the day following the date fixed for the determination
of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution. In any case in which this Section 15(i)(ii)(4)(A) is applicable,
Section 15(i)(ii)(4)(B) shall not be applicable.

(B) In the case of a Spin-Off, the Conversion Rate in effect immediately before the close of business on the record
date fixed for determination of shareholders entitled to receive that distribution will be increased by multiplying the
Conversion Rate by a fraction, the numerator of which is the Current Market Price plus the Fair Market Value (as defined
below) of the portion of those shares of Capital Stock or similar equity interests so distributed applicable to one share of
Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, as the case may be, and the denominator of which is the Current Market
Price. Any adjustment to the Conversion Rate under this Section 15(i)(ii)(4)(B) will occur at the earlier of (A) the tenth
Trading Day from, and including, the effective date of the Spin-Off and (B) the date of the securities being offered in the
Initial Public Offering of the Spin-Off, if that Initial Public Offering is effected simultaneously with the Spin-Off.

(5) Cash Distributions. In case the Corporation shall (A) by dividend or otherwise, distribute to all holders of its Common
Stock and/or Class B Common Stock, cash (excluding (x) any cash that is distributed in a Reorganization Event to which
Section 15(i)(iii) applies or as part of a distribution referred to in Section 15(i)(ii)(4)) in an aggregate amount that, combined
together with (B) the aggregate amount of any other distributions to all holders of Common Stock and/or Class B Common
Stock made exclusively in cash within the 12 months preceding the date of payment of such distribution and in respect of which
no adjustment pursuant to this Section 15(i)(ii)(5) or (6) has been made and (C) the aggregate of any cash plus the fair market
value, as of the date of the expiration of the tender or exchange offer referred to below (as determined in good faith by the
Board of Directors, whose determination shall be conclusive and described in a Board Resolution), of the consideration payable
in respect of any tender or exchange offer by the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries for all or any portion of the Common
Stock and/or Class B Common Stock concluded within the 12 months preceding the date of payment of the distribution
described in clause (A) of this Section 15(i)(ii)(5) and in respect of which no adjustment pursuant to this Section 15(i)(ii)(5) or
(6) has been made, exceeds 10% of the product of the Current Market Price on the date for the determination of shareholders
entitled to receive such distribution times the
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number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Common Stock outstanding on such date, then, and in each such case,
immediately after the close of business on such date for determination, the Conversion Rate shall be increased by dividing the
Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the close of business on the date fixed for determination of the shareholders
entitled to receive such distribution by a fraction (A) the numerator of which shall be equal to the Current Market Price on the
date fixed for such determination less an amount equal to the quotient of (x) the combined amount distributed or payable in the
transactions described in clauses (A), (B) and (C) of this Section 15(i)(ii)(5) and (y) the number of shares of Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock outstanding on the date fixed for such determination and (B) the denominator of which shall be equal to
the Current Market Price on the date fixed for such determination.

(6) Tender Offers. In case (A) a tender or exchange offer made by the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation for
all or any portion of the Common Stock and/or Class B Common Stock shall expire and such tender or exchange offer (as
amended through the expiration thereof) shall require the payment to shareholders (based on the acceptance (up to any
maximum specified in the terms of the tender or exchange offer) of Purchased Shares (as defined below)) of an aggregate
consideration having a fair market value (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors, whose determination shall be
conclusive and described in a Board Resolution) that combined together with (B) the aggregate of the cash plus the fair market
value (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors, whose determination shall be conclusive and described in a Board
Resolution), as of the expiration of such tender or exchange offer, of consideration payable in respect of any other tender or
exchange offer by the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation for all or any portion of the Common Stock and/or Class
B Common Stock expiring within the 12 months preceding the expiration of such tender or exchange offer and in respect of
which no adjustment pursuant to Section 15(i)(ii)(5) or (6) has been made and (C) the aggregate amount of any distributions to
all holders of shares of Common Stock and/or Class B Common Stock made exclusively in cash within the 12 months
preceding the expiration of such tender or exchange offer and in respect of which no adjustment pursuant to Section 15(i)(ii)(5)
or (6) has been made, exceeds 10% of the product of the Current Market Price as of the last time (the “Expiration Time”)
tenders could have been made pursuant to such tender or exchange offer (as amended through the expiration thereof) times
the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Common Stock outstanding (including any tendered shares) at the
Expiration Time, then, and in each such case, immediately prior to the opening of business on the day after the date of the
Expiration Time, the Conversion Rate shall be increased by dividing the Conversion Rate immediately prior to the close of
business on the date of the Expiration Time by a fraction (A) the numerator of which shall be equal to (x) the product of (I) the
Current Market Price on the date of the Expiration Time and (II) the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Common
Stock outstanding (including any tendered shares) on the date of the Expiration Time less (y) the amount of cash plus the fair
market value (determined as aforesaid) of the aggregate consideration payable to shareholders based on the transactions
described in clauses (A), (B) and (C) of this Section 15(i)(ii)(6) (assuming in the case of clause (A) the acceptance, up to any
maximum specified in the terms of the tender or
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exchange offer, of Purchased Shares), and (B) the denominator of which shall be equal to the product of (x) the Current Market
Price on the date of the Expiration Time and (y) the number of shares of Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
outstanding (including any tendered shares) on the date of the Expiration Time less the number of all shares validly tendered,
not withdrawn and accepted for payment on the date of the Expiration Time (such validly tendered shares, up to any such
maximum, being referred to as the “Purchased Shares”).

(7) Calculation of Adjustments. All adjustments to the Conversion Rate shall be calculated to the nearest 1/10,000th of a
share of Common Stock (or if there is not a nearest 1/10,000th of a share to the next lower 1/10,000th of a share). No
adjustment in the Conversion Rate shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least
one percent therein; provided, that any adjustments which by reason of this subparagraph are not required to be made shall be
carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment. If an adjustment is made to the Conversion Rate
pursuant to Section 15(i)(ii)(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6) or (7), an adjustment shall also be made to the 20-Day Average Market Price
solely to determine which of clauses (1), (2) or (3) of the definition of Conversion Rate will apply on the Automatic Conversion
Date. Such adjustment shall be made by multiplying the 20-Day Average Market Price by a fraction, the numerator of which
shall be the Conversion Rate immediately before such adjustment and the denominator of which shall be the Conversion Rate
immediately after such adjustment pursuant to Section 15(i)(ii)(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6) or (7); provided, however, that if such
adjustment to the Conversion Rate is required to be made pursuant to the occurrence of any of the events contemplated
Section 15(i)(ii)(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6) or (7) during the period taken into consideration for determining the 20-Day Average
Market Price, appropriate and customary adjustments shall be made to the Conversion Rate.

(8) Increase of Conversion Rate. The Corporation may make such increases in the Conversion Rate, in addition to those
required by this Section 15(i)(ii), as it considers to be advisable in order to avoid or diminish any income tax to any holders of
shares of Common Stock resulting from any dividend or distribution of stock or issuance of rights or warrants to purchase or
subscribe for stock or from any event treated as such for income tax purposes or for any other reasons.

(9) Notice of Adjustment. Whenever the Conversion Rate is adjusted in accordance with this Section 15(i)(ii), the
Corporation shall: (A) forthwith compute the Conversion Rate in accordance with this Section 15(i)(ii) and prepare and transmit
to the Transfer Agent an Officer’s Certificate setting forth the Conversion Rate, the method of calculation thereof in reasonable
detail, and the facts requiring such adjustment and upon which such adjustment is based; and (B) as soon as practicable
following the occurrence of an event that requires an adjustment to the Conversion Rate pursuant to this Section 15(i)(ii) (or if
the Corporation is not aware of such occurrence, as soon as practicable after becoming so aware), provide a written notice to
the Holders of the occurrence of such event and a statement setting forth in reasonable detail the method by which the
adjustment to the Conversion Rate was determined and setting forth the adjusted Conversion Rate.
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(iii) In the event of:

(1) any consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into another Person or of another Person with or into the
Corporation; or

(2) any sale, transfer, lease or conveyance to another Person of the property of the Corporation as an entirety or
substantially as an entirety; or

(3) any reclassification (other than a reclassification to which Section 15(i)(ii)(3) applies),

(any such event, a “Reorganization Event”), each share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock prior to such
Reorganization Event shall, after such Reorganization Event, be converted into the right to receive the kind and amount of securities,
cash and other property receivable in such Reorganization Event (without any interest thereon, and without any right to dividends or
distributions thereon which have a record date that is prior to the date of the Reorganization Event) per share of Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock by a holder of Common Stock that (A) is not a Person with which the Corporation consolidated or into
which the Corporation merged or which merged into the Corporation or to which such sale or transfer was made, as the case may be
(any such Person, a “Constituent Person”), or an Affiliate (as defined below) of a Constituent Person to the extent such Reorganization
Event provides for different treatment of Common Stock held by Affiliates of the Corporation and non-Affiliates, and (B) has failed to
exercise the rights of election, if any, as to the kind or amount of securities, cash and other property receivable upon such
Reorganization Event (provided that if the kind or amount of securities, cash and other property receivable upon such Reorganization
Event is not the same for each share of Common Stock held immediately prior to such Reorganization Event by other than a
Constituent Person or an Affiliate thereof and in respect of which such rights of election shall not have been exercised (“Non-electing
Share”), then for the purpose of this Section 15(i)(iii) the kind and amount of securities, cash and other property receivable upon such
Reorganization Event by each Non-electing Share shall be deemed to be the kind and amount so receivable per share by a plurality of
the Non-electing Shares). On the Automatic Conversion Date, the Conversion Rate then in effect shall be applied to the value or
amount on the Automatic Conversion Date of such securities, cash or other property.

On the occurrence of such a Reorganization Event, the Person formed by such consolidation or merger or the Person which acquires
the assets of the Corporation shall execute and deliver to the Transfer Agent an agreement supplemental hereto providing that the Holder of
each share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock that remains outstanding after the Reorganization Event (if any) shall have
the rights provided by this Section 15(i)(iii). Such supplemental agreement shall provide for adjustments which, for events subsequent to the
effective date of such supplemental agreement, shall be as nearly equivalent as may be practicable to the adjustments provided for in this
Section 15(i). The above provisions of this Section 15(i)(iii) shall similarly apply to successive Reorganization Events.
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(j) Definitions.

(i) “5-Day Average Market Price” as of any date means the arithmetic average of the volume-weighted average price per share of
the Common Stock for each of the five Trading Days ending on the earlier of the day preceding the date in question and the day before
the “ex date” with respect to the issuance or distribution requiring such computation, as reported by Bloomberg Professional Service
accessed using the reference “XRX Equity VAP” for the period beginning at 9:30 am, New York City time, and ending at 4:00 pm,
New York City time. If such day is not a Trading Day, the five Trading Days will end on the last Trading Day prior to such day. For
purposes of this paragraph, the term “Ex Date,” when used with respect to any such issuance or distribution, means the first date on
which the Common Stock trades without the right to receive such issuance or distribution. If, on any trading day no volume-weighted
average price is reported for the Common Stock by Bloomberg Professional Service, the Closing Price of a share of the Common
Stock will be substituted for the volume-weighted average price for such day.

(ii) “20-Day Average Market Price” as of any conversion date means the arithmetic average of the volume-weighted average price
per share of the Common Stock for each of the 20 Trading Days ending on the third business day prior to the applicable conversion
date, as reported by Bloomberg Professional Service accessed using the reference “XRX Equity VAP” for the period beginning at 9:30
am, New York City time, and ending at 4:00 pm, New York City time. If the third business day prior to such conversion date is not a
Trading Day, the 20 Trading Days will end on the last trading day prior to the third business day prior to such conversion date. For
purposes of this definition, the term “ex date,” when used with respect to any such issuance or distribution, means the first date on
which the Common Stock trades without the right to receive such issuance or distribution. If, on any Trading Day no volume-weighted
average price is reported for the Common Stock by Bloom-berg Professional Service, the Closing Price of a share of the Common
Stock will be substituted for the volume-weighted average price for such day.

(iii) “Affiliate” has the same meaning as given to that term in Rule 405 of the Securities Act or any successor rule thereunder.

(iv) “Board Resolution” means a copy of a resolution certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Corporation to
have been duly adopted by the Board of Directors or any authorized committee thereof and to be in full force and effect and filed with
the Transfer Agent.

(v) “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or any other day on which banks in The City of New York are
authorized or required by law or executive order to close.

(vi) “Capital Stock” of any Person means any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents however designated of
corporate stock or other equity participations, including partnership interests, whether general or limited, of such Person and any rights
(other than debt securities convertible or exchangeable into an equity interest), warrants or options to acquire an equity interest in such
Person.

(vii) The “Closing Price” of the Common Stock or any securities distributed in a Spin-Off, as the case may be, on any date of
determination means the closing sale price (or, if no closing sale price is reported, the last reported sale price) per share on the
New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) on such date or, if such security is not listed for trading on NYSE on any such date, as
reported in the composite transactions for the principal United States securities exchange on which such security is
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so listed or quoted or, if such security is not so listed or quoted on a United States national or regional securities exchange, as reported
by the Nasdaq stock market or, if such security is not so reported, the last quoted bid price for such security in the over-the-counter
market as reported by the National Quotation Bureau or similar organization or, if such bid price is not available, the market value of
such security on such date as determined by a nationally recognized independent investment banking firm retained for this purpose by
the Corporation.

(viii) “Corporate Trust Office” means the principal corporate trust office of the Transfer Agent at which, at any particular time, its
corporate trust business shall be administered.

(ix) “Current Market Price” means (1) on any day the average of the Closing Prices of the Common Stock for the five consecutive
Trading Days preceding the earlier of the day preceding the day in question and the day before the “ex date” with respect to the
issuance or distribution requiring computation, (2) in the case of any Spin-Off that is effected simultaneously with an Initial Public
Offering of the securities being distributed in the Spin-Off, the Closing Price of the Common Stock on the Trading Day on which the
initial public offering price of the securities being distributed in the Spin-Off is determined, and (3) in the case of any other Spin-Off, the
average of the Closing Prices of the Common Stock over the first 10 Trading Days after the effective date of such Spin-Off. For
purposes of this paragraph, the term “ex date,” when used with respect to any issuance or distribution, shall mean the first date on
which the Common Stock trades in a regular way on such exchange or in such market without the right to receive such issuance or
distribution.

(x) “Fair Market Value” means (1) in the case of any Spin-Off that is effected simultaneously with an Initial Public Offering of the
securities being distributed in the Spin-Off, the initial public offering price of those securities, and (2) in the case of any other Spin-Off,
the average of the Closing Prices of the securities being distributed in the Spin-Off over the first 10 Trading Days after the effective date
of such Spin-Off.

(xi) “Holder” means the Person in whose name a share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is registered.

(xii) “Initial Public Offering” means the first time securities of the same class or type as the securities being distributed in the Spin-
Off are offered to the public for cash.

(xiii) “Officer” means the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the President, any Vice
President, the Treasurer or the Secretary of the Corporation.

(xiv) “Officer’s Certificate” means a certificate signed by two Officers.

(xv) “Person” means any individual, corporation, limited liability corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, unincorporated
organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.

(xvi) “Provisional Conversion Date” means the date fixed for conversion of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock into shares of Common Stock pursuant to Section 15(f) above or, if the Corporation shall default in the cash payment of (1) an
amount equal to any accrued and unpaid dividends on the shares
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of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding, whether or not declared, and (2) the present value of all
remaining dividend payments on the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding, through and
including July 1, 2006, in connection with such conversion on such date, the date the Corporation actually makes such payment.

(xvii) “Spin-Off” means a dividend or other distribution of shares of capital stock of any class or series, or similar equity interests,
of or relating to a subsidiary or other business unit of the Corporation.

(xviii) “Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, (1) any corporation, association or other business entity of which more
than 50% of the total voting power of shares of Capital Stock entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in
the election of directors, managers or trustees thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or one or
more of the other Subsidiaries of such Person (or a combination thereof) and (2) any partnership (A) the sole general partner or the
managing general partner of which is such Person or a Subsidiary of such Person or (B) the only general partners of which are such
Person or one or more Subsidiaries of such Person (or any combination thereof).

(xix) “Trading Day” means a day on which the Common Stock or any security distributed in a Spin-Off, as the case may be, (1) is
not suspended from trading on any national or regional securities exchange or association or over-the-counter market at the close of
business and (2) has traded at least once on the national or regional securities exchange or association or over-the-counter market
that is the primary market for the trading of such security.

(xx) “Treasury Yield” means the yield to maturity at the time of computation of U.S. Treasury securities with a constant maturity
(as compiled and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (519) which has become publicly available at
least two Business Days prior to the Provisional Conversion Date (or, if such Statistical Release is no longer published, any publicly
available source for similar market data)) most nearly equal to the then remaining term to July 1, 2006; provided, however, that if the
then remaining term to July 1, 2006 is not equal to the constant maturity of a U.S. Treasury security for which a weekly average yield is
given, the Treasury Yield shall be obtained by linear interpolation (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth of a year) from the weekly
average yields of U.S. Treasury securities for which such yields are given, except that if the then remaining term to July 1, 2006 is less
than one year, the weekly average yield on actually traded U.S. Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year shall be
used.

(xxi) “Transfer Agent” means the Equiserve Trust Company, N.A. unless and until a successor is selected by the Corporation, and
then such successor.

(k) Fractional Shares.

No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued to Holders. In lieu of any fraction of a share of Common Stock which would
otherwise be issuable in respect of the aggregate number of shares of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock surrendered by
the same Holder upon a conversion as described in Section 15(e), (f)(i), (g)(ii) or (h)(i) or which would otherwise be issuable in respect of a
stock dividend payment upon a conversion as described in Section 18(e), such Holder shall have the right to receive an
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amount in cash (computed to the nearest cent) equal to the same fraction of (i) in the case of Section 15(e), the 5-Day Average Market Price
or (b) in the case of Section 6(a), 7(b) or 8(c), the Closing Price of the Common Stock determined as of the second Trading Day immediately
preceding the effective date of conversion. If more than one share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be surrendered
for conversion at one time by or for the same Holder, the number of full shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion thereof shall be
computed on the basis of the aggregate number of shares of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock so surrendered.

(l) Miscellaneous.

(i) Procedures for conversion of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, in accordance with Section 15(e), (f),
(g) or (h), not held in certificated form will be governed by arrangements among the depositary of the shares of Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock, its participants and persons that may hold beneficial interests through such participants designed to
permit settlement without the physical movement of certificates. Payments, transfers, deliveries, exchanges and other matters relating
to beneficial interests in global security certificates may be subject to various policies and procedures adopted by the depositary from
time to time.

(ii) The Liquidation Preference and the annual dividend rate set forth in this Section 15 each shall be subject to equitable
adjustment whenever there shall occur a stock split, combination, reclassification or other similar event involving the Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. Such adjustments shall be determined in good faith by the Board of Directors and submitted by
the Board of Directors to the Transfer Agent.

(iii) For the purposes of Section 15(i), the number of shares of Common Stock at any time outstanding shall not include shares
held in the treasury of the Corporation but shall include shares issuable in respect of scrip certificates issued in lieu of fractions of
shares of Common Stock.

(iv) If the Corporation shall take any action affecting the Common Stock, other than any action described in Section 15(i), that in
the opinion of the Board of Directors would materially adversely affect the conversion rights of the Holders, then the Conversion Rate,
the Provisional Conversion Rate and/or the Optional Conversion Rate for the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock may be
adjusted, to the extent permitted by law, in such manner, and at such time, as the Board of Directors may determine to be equitable in
the circumstances.

(v) The Corporation covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available, free from preemptive rights, out of the aggregate
of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock for the purpose of effecting conversion of the Series C Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, the full number of shares of Common Stock deliverable upon the conversion of all outstanding shares of Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock not theretofore converted. For purposes of this Section 15(l)(v), the number of shares of
Common Stock that shall be deliverable upon the conversion of all outstanding shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock shall be computed as if at the time of computation all such outstanding shares were held by a single Holder.
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(vi) The Corporation covenants that any shares of Common Stock issued upon conversion of the Series C Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock or issued in respect of a stock dividend payment upon a conversion described in Section 15(e) shall be validly issued,
fully paid and non-assessable.

(vii) The Corporation shall use its best efforts to list the shares of Common Stock required to be delivered upon conversion of the
Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or upon issuance in respect of a stock dividend payment upon a conversion described
in Section 18(e), prior to such delivery, upon each national securities exchange or quotation system, if any, upon which the outstanding
Common Stock is listed at the time of such delivery.

(viii) Prior to the delivery of any securities that the Corporation shall be obligated to deliver upon conversion of the Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or upon issuance in respect of a stock dividend payment upon a conversion described in
Section 15(e) , the Corporation shall use its best efforts to comply with all federal and state laws and regulations thereunder requiring
the registration of such securities with, or any approval of or consent to the delivery thereof by, any governmental authority.

(ix) The Corporation shall pay any and all documentary, stamp or similar issue or transfer taxes payable in respect of the issue or
delivery of shares of Common Stock or other securities or property upon conversion of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock pursuant thereto or upon issuance in respect of a stock dividend payment upon a conversion described in Section 15(e);
provided, however, that the Corporation shall not be required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in
the issue or delivery of shares of Common Stock or other securities or property in a name other than that of the Holder of the Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock to be converted and no such issue or delivery shall be made unless and until the person
requesting such issue or delivery has paid to the Corporation the amount of any such tax or established, to the reasonable satisfaction
of the Corporation, that such tax has been paid or is not applicable.

(x) The Series C Senior Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is not redeemable.

(xi) The Series C Senior Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is not entitled to any preemptive or subscription rights in respect
of any securities of the Corporation.

(xii) Whenever possible, each provision hereof shall be interpreted in a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law,
but if any provision hereof is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective only to the
extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating or otherwise adversely affecting the remaining provisions hereof. If a court of
competent jurisdiction should determine that a provision hereof would be valid or enforceable if a period of time were extended or
shortened or a particular percentage were increased or decreased, then such court may make such change as shall be necessary to
render the provision in question effective and valid under applicable law.
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(xiii) Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock may be issued in fractions of a share which shall entitle the Holder, in
proportion to such Holder’s fractional shares, to exercise voting rights, receive dividends, participate in distributions and have the
benefit of all other rights of Holders of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.

(xiv) Subject to applicable escheat laws, any monies set aside by the Corporation in respect of any payment with respect to
shares of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, or dividends thereon, and unclaimed at the end of two years from the
date upon which such payment is due and payable shall revert to the general funds of the Corporation, after which reversion the
Holders of such shares shall look only to the general funds of the Corporation for the payment thereof. Any interest accrued on funds
so deposited shall be paid to the Corporation from time to time.

(xv) Except as may otherwise be required by law, the shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not have
any voting powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, other than those specifically set forth in this
Certificate of Incorporation.

(xvi) The headings of the various subdivisions hereof are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the interpretation
of any of the provisions hereof.

(xvii) If any of the voting powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights of the Series C
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof set forth herein is invalid, unlawful or
incapable of being enforced by reason of any rule of law or public policy, all other voting powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional and other special rights of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and qualifications, limitations and restrictions
thereof set forth herein which can be given effect without the invalid, unlawful or unenforceable voting powers, preferences and relative,
participating, optional and other special rights of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and qualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof shall, nevertheless, remain in full force and effect, and no voting powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and qualifications, limitations and restrictions
thereof herein set forth shall be deemed dependent upon any other such voting powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional
or other special rights of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof
unless so expressed herein.

(xviii) Shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock that (a) have not been issued on or before August 1, 2003 or
(b) have been issued and reacquired in any manner, including shares purchased or redeemed or exchanged or converted, shall (upon
compliance with any applicable provisions of the laws of New York) have the status of authorized but unissued shares of Cumulative
Preferred Stock of the Corporation undesignated as to series and may be designated or redesignated and issued or reissued, as the
case may be, as part of any series of preferred stock of the Corporation; provided, however, that any issuance of such shares as
Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock must be in compliance with the terms hereof.

(xix) If any of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificates shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the
Corporation shall issue, in exchange and in substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Series C Mandatory
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Convertible Preferred Stock certificate, or in lieu of and substitution for the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate
lost, stolen or destroyed, a new Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate of like tenor and representing an equivalent
number of shares of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, but only upon receipt of evidence of such loss, theft or
destruction of such Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate and indemnity, if requested, satisfactory to the
Corporation and the Transfer Agent. The Corporation is not required to issue any certificates representing Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock on or after the Automatic Conversion Date. In place of the delivery of a replacement certificate following
the Automatic Conversion Date, the Transfer Agent, upon delivery of the evidence and indemnity described above, will deliver the
shares of Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock evidenced by the certificate.

FIFTH: The Secretary of State of the State of New York is hereby designated as the agent of the Corporation upon whom process in any
action or proceeding against it may be served. The post office address to which the Secretary of State shall mail a copy of any process against it
served on him is:

XEROX CORPORATION
45 Glover Avenue
P. O. Box 4505
Norwalk, CT 06856-4505
Attention: General Counsel

SIXTH: Its duration is to be perpetual.

SEVENTH: The number of directors shall be not less than five (5) nor more than twenty-one (21) as determined in the manner prescribed by
the By-Laws.

Unless the election is contested, each director shall be elected by the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast for or against the director
at any meeting for the election of directors at which a quorum is present.  In a contested election, directors shall be elected by a plurality of the
votes cast at a meeting of shareholders by the holders of shares entitled to vote in the election. An election shall be considered contested if as of
the record date there are more nominees for election than positions on the board of directors to be filled by election at the meeting.

EIGHTH: The Corporation may purchase, acquire, hold and dispose of the stocks, bonds and other evidences of indebtedness of any
corporation, domestic or foreign, and may issue in exchange therefor, its stock, bonds or other obligations.

NINTH: A person who is or was a director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its shareholders for damages
for any breach of duty in such capacity, except to the extent that the Business Corporation Law of the State of New York as in effect from time to
time expressly provides that the foregoing provisions shall not eliminate or limit such personal liability. Nothing in this Article shall directly or
indirectly increase the liability of any such person based upon acts or omissions occurring before the adoption hereof. No amendment, modification
or repeal of this Article shall adversely affect any right or protection of any director that exists at the time of such change.
 

31



Exhibit 3(b)

BY-LAWS

of

XEROX CORPORATION

May 22, 2008
  

ARTICLE I

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

SECTION 1. Annual Meetings: A meeting of shareholders entitled to vote shall be held for the election of Directors and the transaction of
other business each year in such month and on such day (except a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday) as determined by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. Special Meetings: Special Meetings of the shareholders may be called at any time by the Chairman of the Board or the Board of
Directors.

SECTION 3. Place of Meetings: Meetings of shareholders shall be held at the principal office of the Company or at such other place, within
or without the State of New York, as may be fixed by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. Notice of Meetings:

(a) Notice of each meeting of shareholders shall be in writing and shall state the place, date and hour of the meeting. Notice of a Special
Meeting shall state the purpose or purposes for which it is being called and shall also indicate that it is being issued by or at the direction of the
person or persons calling the meeting. If, at any meeting, action is proposed to be taken which would, if taken, entitle shareholders, fulfilling the
requirements of Section 623 of the Business Corporation Law to receive payment for their shares, the notice of such meeting shall include a
statement of that purpose and to that effect.

(b) A copy of the notice of any meeting shall be given, personally, electronically or by mail, not less than ten nor more than sixty days before
the date of the meeting, to each shareholder entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, such notice is given when deposited in the United States
mail, with postage thereon prepaid, directed to the shareholder at his or her address as it appears on the record of shareholders, or, if he or she
shall have filed with the Secretary a written request that notices to him or her be mailed to some other address, then directed to him or her at such
other address.

(c) Notice of meeting need not be given to any shareholder who submits a signed waiver of notice, in person or by proxy, whether before or
after the meeting. The attendance of any shareholder at a meeting, in person or by proxy, without protesting prior to the conclusion of the meeting
the lack of notice of such meeting, shall constitute a waiver of notice by him or her.



SECTION 5. Quorum and Adjourned Meetings:

(a) At any Annual or Special Meeting the holders of a majority of the votes of shares entitled to vote thereat, present in person or by proxy,
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business, provided that when a specified item of business is required to be voted on by a class
or series, voting as a class, the holders of a majority of the votes of shares of such class or series shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
such specified item of business. When a quorum is once present to organize a meeting, it is not broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any
shareholders.

(b) Despite the absence of a quorum, the shareholders present may adjourn the meeting to another time and place, and it shall not be
necessary to give any notice of the adjourned meeting if the time and place to which the meeting is adjourned are announced at the meeting at
which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting any business may be transacted that might have been transacted on the original date of
the meeting. If after the adjournment, however, the Board of Directors fixes a new record date for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned
meeting shall be given to each shareholder on the new record date entitled to notice under Section 4 of this Article I of the By-Laws.

SECTION 6. Nominations and Business at Meetings:

At any annual meeting of shareholders, only persons who are nominated or business which is proposed in accordance with the procedures
set forth in this Section 6 shall be eligible for election as Directors or considered for action by shareholders. Nominations of persons for election to
the Board of Directors of the Company may be made or business proposed at a meeting of shareholders (i) by or at the direction of the Board of
Directors or (ii) by any shareholder of the Company entitled to vote at the meeting who complies with the notice and other procedures set forth in
this Section 6. Such nominations or business proposals, other than those made by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, shall be made
pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary of the Company and such business proposals must, under applicable law, be a proper matter
for shareholder action. To be timely, a shareholder’s notice shall be delivered to or mailed and received at the principal executive offices of the
Company not less than 120 days nor more than 150 days in advance of the date which is the anniversary of the date the Company’s proxy
statement was released to security holders in connection with the previous year’s annual meeting; provided, that, if the Company did not hold such
previous year’s annual meeting or if the anniversary date of the current year’s annual meeting has been changed by more than 30 days from the
date of the previous year’s annual meeting, then such shareholder’s notice shall be so delivered or mailed and received within a reasonable time
before the Company begins to print and mail its proxy statement.

Such shareholder’s notice shall set forth (a) as to each person whom such shareholder proposes to nominate for election or reelection as a
Director, all information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors, or is otherwise
required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (including such person’s written
consent to being named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a Director if elected); (b) as to any other business that the
shareholder proposes to bring before the meeting, a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the annual meeting, the reasons
for conducting such business at the annual meeting and any material interest in such business of such person on whose behalf such proposal is
made; and (c) as to the shareholder giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or proposal is made, (i) the
name and address of such



shareholder, as they appear on the Company’s books and (ii) the class and number of shares of the Company which are beneficially owned by
such shareholder. No person shall be eligible for election as a Director of the Company and no business shall be conducted at the annual meeting
of shareholders unless nominated or proposed in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 6. The Chairman of the meeting may, if
the facts warrant, determine and declare to the meeting that a nomination or proposal was not made in accordance with the provisions of this
Section 6 and, if he or she should so determine, he or she shall so declare to the meeting and the defective nomination or proposal shall be
disregarded.

SECTION 7. Organization: At every meeting of the shareholders, the Chairman of the Board, or in his or her absence, the President, or in his
or her absence, an Executive Vice President designated by the Chairman of the Board, or in the absence of such officers, a person selected by the
meeting, shall act as chairman of the meeting. The Secretary or, in his or her absence, an Assistant Secretary shall act as secretary of the
meeting, and in the absence of both the Secretary and an Assistant Secretary, a person selected by the meeting shall act as secretary of the
meeting.

SECTION 8. Voting:

(a) Whenever any corporate action is to be taken by vote of the shareholders, it shall, except as otherwise required by law or by the
Certificate of Incorporation be authorized by a majority of the votes cast in favor of or against such action at a meeting of shareholders by the
holders of shares entitled to vote thereon. An abstention shall not constitute a vote cast.

(b) In an uncontested election, any incumbent nominees for director who receives a greater number of votes cast against his or her election
than in favor of his or her election shall tender his or her resignation promptly after such election. The independent Directors shall then decide,
based on the relevant facts and circumstances, whether to accept or reject the resignation. The Board’s explanation of its decision shall be
promptly disclosed on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

SECTION 9. Qualification of Voters:

(a) Every shareholder of record of Common Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company shall be entitled at every
meeting of such shareholders to one vote for every share of Common Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively, standing in his
or her name on the record of shareholders.

(b) Shares of stock belonging to the Company and shares held by another domestic or foreign corporation of any type or kind, if a majority of
the shares entitled to vote in the election of directors of such other corporation is held by the Company, shall not be shares entitled to vote or to be
counted in determining the total number of outstanding shares.

(c) Shares held by an administrator, executor, guardian, conservator, committee, or other fiduciary, except a trustee, may be voted by him or
her, either in person or by proxy, without transfer of such shares into his or her name. Shares held by a trustee may be voted by him or her, either
in person or by proxy, only after the shares have been transferred into his or her name as trustee or into the name of his or her nominee.

(d) Shares standing in the name of another domestic or foreign corporation of any type or kind may be voted by such officer, agent or proxy
as the By-Laws of such corporation may provide, or in the absence of such provision, as the Board of Directors of such corporation may provide.



SECTION 10. Proxies:

(a) Every shareholder entitled to vote at a meeting of shareholders or to express consent or dissent without a meeting may authorize another
person or persons to act for him or her by proxy.

(b) No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven months from the date thereof unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Every proxy
shall be revocable at the pleasure of the shareholder executing it, except as otherwise provided by law.

(c) The authority of the holder of a proxy to act shall not be revoked by the incompetence or death of the shareholder who executed the proxy
unless, before the authority is exercised, written notice of an adjudication of such incompetence or of such death is received by the Secretary or an
Assistant Secretary.

(d) Without limiting the manner in which a shareholder may authorize another person or persons to act for him or her as proxy pursuant to
paragraph (a) of this Section, the following shall constitute a valid means by which a shareholder may grant such authority:

(1) A shareholder may execute a writing authorizing another person or persons to act for him or her as proxy. Execution may be
accomplished by the shareholder or the shareholder’s authorized officer, director, employee or agent signing such writing or causing his or
her signature to be affixed to such writing by any reasonable means including, but not limited to, by facsimile signature.

(2) A shareholder may authorize another person or persons to act for the shareholder as proxy by transmitting or authorizing the
transmission of a telegram, cablegram or other means of electronic transmission to the person who will be the holder of the proxy or to a
proxy solicitation firm, proxy support service organization or like agent duly authorized by the person who will be the holder of the proxy to
receive such transmission, provided that such telegram, cablegram or other means of electronic transmission must either set forth or be
submitted with information from which it can be reasonably determined that the telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission was
authorized by the shareholder. If it is determined that such telegrams, cablegrams or other electronic transmissions are valid, the inspectors
shall specify the nature of the information upon which they relied.

(e) Any copy, facsimile telecommunication or other reliable reproduction of the writing or transmission created pursuant to paragraph (d) of
this Section may be substituted or used in lieu of the original writing or transmission for any and all purposes for which the original writing or
transmission could be used, provided that such copy, facsimile, telecommunication or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the
entire original writing or transmission.

SECTION 11. Inspectors of Election:

(a) The Board of Directors, in advance of any shareholders’ meeting, shall appoint one or more inspectors to act at the meeting or any
adjournment thereof. The Board of Directors may designate one or more persons as alternate inspectors to replace any inspector who fails to



act. If no inspector or alternate has been appointed, or if such persons are unable to act at a meeting of shareholders, the person presiding at a
shareholders’ meeting shall appoint one or more inspectors. Each inspector, before entering upon the discharge of his or her duties, shall take and
sign an oath faithfully to execute the duties of inspector at such meeting with strict impartiality and according to the best of his or her ability.

(b) The inspectors shall determine the number of shares outstanding and the voting power of each, the shares represented at the meeting,
the existence of a quorum, the validity and effect of proxies, and shall receive votes, ballots or consents, hear and determine all challenges and
questions arising in connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes, ballots or consents, determine the result, and do such acts as
are proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all shareholders. On request of the person presiding at the meeting or any shareholder
entitled to vote thereat, the inspectors shall make a report in writing of any challenge, question or matter determined by them and execute a
certificate of any fact found by them. Any report or certificate made by them shall be prima facie evidence of the facts stated and of the vote as
certified by them.

SECTION 12. List of Shareholders at Meetings: A list of shareholders as of the record date, certified by the Secretary or by the transfer
agent, shall be produced at any meeting of shareholders upon the request thereat or prior thereto of any shareholder. If the right to vote at any
meeting is challenged, the inspectors of election, or person presiding thereat shall require such list of shareholders to be produced as evidence of
the right of the persons challenged to vote at such meeting, and all persons who appear from such list to be shareholders entitled to vote thereat
may vote at such meeting.

ARTICLE II

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. Power of Board and Qualification of Directors: The business of the Company shall be managed under the direction of the Board
of Directors, each of whom shall be at least eighteen years of age.

SECTION 2. Number, Term of Office and Classification:

(a) The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than five nor more than twenty-one members. The number of Directors shall be
determined from time to time by resolution of a majority of the entire Board of Directors then in office, provided that no decrease in the number of
Directors shall shorten the term of any incumbent Director. At each Annual Meeting of shareholders Directors shall be elected to hold office until
the next annual meeting.

(b) If and whenever six full quarter-yearly dividends (whether or not consecutive) payable on the Cumulative Preferred Stock of any series
shall be in arrears, in whole or in part, the number of Directors then constituting the Board of Directors shall be increased by two and the holders of
the Cumulative Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class, regardless of series, shall be entitled to elect the two additional Directors at any
annual meeting of shareholders or special meeting held in place thereof, or at a special meeting of the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock
called as hereinafter provided. Whenever all arrears in dividends on the Cumulative Preferred Stock then outstanding shall have been paid and
dividends thereon for the current quarter-yearly dividend period shall have been paid or declared and set apart for payment, then the right of the
holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock to elect such additional two



Directors shall cease (but subject always to the same provisions for the vesting of such voting rights in the case of any similar future arrearages in
dividends), and the terms of office of all persons elected as Directors by the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock shall forthwith terminate and
the number of the Board of Directors shall be reduced accordingly. At any time after such voting power shall have been so vested in the
Cumulative Preferred Stock, the Secretary of the Company may, and upon the written request of any holder of the Cumulative Preferred Stock
(addressed to the Secretary at the principal office of the Company) shall, call a special meeting of the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock for
the election of the two Directors to be elected by them as herein provided, such call to be made by notice similar to that provided in the By-Laws for
a special meeting of the shareholders or as required by law. If any such special meeting required to be called as above provided shall not be called
by the Secretary within twenty days after receipt of any such request, then any holder of Cumulative Preferred Stock may call such meeting, upon
the notice above provided, and for that purpose shall have access to the stock books of the Company. The Directors elected at any such special
meeting shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the shareholders or special meeting held in place thereof. In case any vacancy shall occur
among the Directors elected by the holders of the Cumulative Preferred Stock, a successor shall be elected to serve until the next annual meeting
of the shareholders or special meeting held in place thereof by the then remaining Director elected by the holders of the Cumulative Preferred
Stock or the successor of such remaining Director.

(c) All Directors shall have equal voting power.

SECTION 3. Organization: At each meeting of the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board, or in his or her absence, if the President is
a Director, the President, or if the President is not a Director or in his or her absence, a chairman chosen by a majority of the Directors present
shall preside. The Secretary shall act as secretary of the Board of Directors. In the event the Secretary shall be absent from any meeting of the
Board of Directors, the meeting shall select its secretary.

SECTION 4. Resignations: Any Director of the Company may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairman of the Board or to
the Secretary of the Company. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if no time be specified, then on delivery.

SECTION 5. Vacancies: Newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the number of Directors and vacancies occurring in the
Board of Directors for any reason except the removal of Directors without cause may be filled by a vote of a majority of the Directors then in office,
although less than a quorum exists. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office until the next annual meeting.

SECTION 6. Place of Meeting: The Board of Directors may hold its meetings at such place or places within or without the State of New York
as the Board of Directors may from time to time by resolution determine.

SECTION 7. First Meeting: On the day of each annual election of Directors, the Board of Directors shall meet for the purpose of organization
and the transaction of other business. Notice of such meeting need not be given. Such first meeting may be held at any other time which shall be
specified in a notice given as hereinafter provided for special meetings of the Board of Directors.



SECTION 8. Regular Meetings: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such times as may be fixed from time to time by
resolution of the Board of Directors without notice.

SECTION 9. Special Meetings: Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held whenever called by the Chairman of the Board, or by
any two of the Directors. Oral, telegraphic, electronic or written notice shall be given, sent, transmitted or mailed not less than one day before the
meeting and shall state, in addition to the purposes, the date, place and hour of such meeting.

SECTION 10. Waivers of Notice: Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who submits a signed waiver of notice whether
before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to him or her.

SECTION 11. Quorum and Manner of Acting:

(a) If the number of Directors is twelve or more, seven Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business or any specified
item of business. If the number of Directors is less than twelve, a majority of the entire Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum.

(b) A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place without
notice to any Director.

SECTION 12. Written Consents: Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors or any committee thereof may be
taken without a meeting if all members of the Board or the committee consent in writing to the adoption of a resolution authorizing the action. The
resolution and the written consents thereto by the members of the Board or committee shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the
Board or committee.

SECTION 13. Participation At Meetings By Telephone:  Any one or more members of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof may
participate in a meeting of such Board or committee by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment allowing all
persons participating in the meeting to hear each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a
meeting.

SECTION 14. Compensation: The Board of Directors shall have authority to fix the compensation of Directors for services in any capacity.

SECTION 15. Interested Directors:

(a) No contract or other transaction between the Company and one or more of its Directors, or between the Company and any other
corporation, firm, association or other entity in which one or more of its Directors are directors or officers, or are financially interested, shall be
either void or voidable for this reason alone or by reason alone that such Director or Directors are present at the meeting of the Board of Directors,
or of a committee thereof, which approves such contract or transaction, or that his or her or their votes are counted for such purpose, provided that
the parties to the contract or transaction establish affirmatively that it was fair and reasonable as to the Company at the time it was approved by the
Board, a committee, or the shareholders.



(b) Any such contract or transaction may not be avoided by the Company for the reasons set forth in (a) if

(1) the material facts as to such Director’s interest in such contract or transaction and as to any such common directorship, officership
or financial interest are disclosed in good faith or known to the Board or committee, and the Board or committee approves such contract or
transaction by a vote sufficient for such purpose without counting the vote of such interested Director or, if the votes of the disinterested
Directors are insufficient for such purpose, by unanimous vote of the disinterested Directors (although common or interested Directors may
be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board or of a committee which approves such contract or
transactions), or

(2) the material facts as to such Director’s interest in such contract or transaction and as to any such common directorship, officership
or financial interest are disclosed in good faith or known to the shareholders entitled to vote thereon, and such contract or transaction is
approved by vote of such shareholders.

SECTION 16. Loans to Directors: The Company may not lend money to or guarantee the obligation of a Director of the Company unless the
particular loan or guarantee is approved by the shareholders, with the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote thereon constituting a
quorum, but shares held of record or beneficially by Directors who are benefited by such loan or guarantee shall not be entitled to vote or to be
included in the determination of a quorum.

ARTICLE III

COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. How Constituted and Powers: The Board of Directors by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board may designate
from among its members committees of the Board, each of which shall consist of one or more Directors and shall have such authority as provided
in the resolution designating the committee, except such committees shall have no authority as to the following matters:

(a) The submission to shareholders of any action that needs shareholders’ authorization.

(b) The filling of vacancies in the Board or in any committee.

(c) The fixing of compensation of the Directors for serving on the Board or on any committee.

(d) The amendment or repeal of the By-Laws, or the adoption of new By-Laws.

(e) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which, by its terms, shall not be so amendable or repealable.

(f) The declaration of dividends.



SECTION 2. Quorum and Manner of Acting: Unless otherwise provided by resolution of the Board of Directors, a majority of each committee
of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of all of the members of the committee, whether
present or not, shall be the act of the committee. The members of the committee shall act only as a committee. The procedure of the committee
and its manner of acting shall be subject at all times to the directions of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. Alternate Members: The Board of Directors may designate one or more eligible Directors as alternate members of any
committee of the Board who may replace any absent or disqualified member or members at any meeting of any such committee.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

SECTION 1. Number: The officers of the Company shall be a Chairman of the Board, a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a Treasurer,
a Secretary, and such other officers as the Board of Directors may in its discretion elect. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.

SECTION 2. Term of Offices and Qualifications: Those officers whose titles are specifically mentioned in Section 1 of this Article IV shall be
chosen by the Board of Directors on the day of the Annual Meeting. Unless a shorter term is provided in the resolution of the Board electing such
officer, the term of office of such officer shall extend to and expire at the meeting of the Board held on the day of the next Annual Meeting. The
Chairman of the Board shall be chosen from among the Directors.

SECTION 3. Additional Officers: Additional officers other than those whose titles are specifically mentioned in Section 1 of this Article IV shall
be elected for such period, have such authority and perform such duties, either in an administrative or subordinate capacity, as the Board of
Directors may from time to time determine.

SECTION 4. Removal of Officers: Any officer may be removed by the Board of Directors with or without cause, at any time. Removal of an
officer without cause shall be without prejudice to his or her contract rights, if any, but his or her election as an officer shall not of itself create
contract rights.

SECTION 5. Resignation: Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, or to the Chairman of the
Board or to the Secretary. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or if no time be specified, then upon delivery.

SECTION 6. Vacancies: A vacancy in any office shall be filled by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 7. Chairman of the Board: The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the shareholders at which he or she is
present, unless at such meetings the shareholders shall appoint a chairman other than the Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board
shall preside at all meetings of the Directors at which he or she is present. The Chairman shall act as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and it shall be his or her duty to supervise generally the management of the business of the Company with responsibility direct to the Board and
subject to the control of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall have such powers and perform such other duties as may be assigned to him
or her by the Board.



SECTION 8. President: The President shall, in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, preside at all meetings of the shareholders and, if
he or she is also a Director, meetings of Directors at which he or she is present. The President shall have such powers and perform such other
duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board. With respect to seniority of the President, unless the Board determines otherwise, the
President shall be senior to the Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents and Vice Presidents.

SECTION 9. The Vice Presidents: Each Vice President shall have such powers and shall perform such duties as may be assigned to him or
her by the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board. With respect to seniority of Vice Presidents, unless the Board determines otherwise,
Executive Vice Presidents shall be first in order of priority, Senior Vice Presidents shall be second in order of priority and Vice Presidents shall be
third in order of priority.

SECTION 10. The Treasurer: The Treasurer shall, if required by the Board of Directors, give a bond for the faithful discharge of his or her
duties, in such sum and with such sureties as the Board of Directors shall require. He or she shall have charge and custody of, and be responsible
for, all funds and securities of the Company, and deposit all such funds in the name of and to the credit of the Company in such banks, trust
companies, or other depositories as shall be selected by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer may sign certificates for stock of the Company
authorized by the Board of Directors. He or she shall also perform all other duties customarily incident to the office of Treasurer and such other
duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 11. The Secretary: It shall be the duty of the Secretary to act as secretary of all meetings of the Board of Directors, and of the
shareholders, and to keep the minutes of all such meetings at which he or she shall so act in a proper book or books to be provided for that
purpose; he or she shall see that all notices required to be given by the Company are duly given and served; he or she may sign and execute in
the name of the Company certificates for the stock of the Company, deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or other instruments authorized by the
Board of Directors; he or she shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, for use at meetings of shareholders the list of shareholders as of the record
date referred to in Article I, Section 12 of these By-Laws and shall certify, or cause the transfer agent to certify, such list; he or she shall keep a
current list of the Company’s Directors and officers and their residence addresses; he or she shall be custodian of the seal of the Company and
shall affix the seal, or cause it to be affixed, to all agreements, documents and other papers requiring the same. The Secretary shall have custody
of the Minute Book containing the minutes of all meetings of shareholders, Directors, and the committees of the Board which may keep minutes,
and of all other contracts and documents which are not in the custody of the Treasurer of the Company, or in the custody of some other person
authorized by the Board of Directors to have such custody.

SECTION 12. Appointed Officers: The Board of Directors may delegate to any officer or committee the power to appoint and to remove any
subordinate officer, agent or employee.

SECTION 13. Assignment and Transfer of Stocks, Bonds, and Other Securities: The Chairman of the Board, the Treasurer, the Secretary,
any Assistant Secretary, any Assistant Treasurer, and each of them, shall have power to assign, or to endorse for transfer, under the corporate
seal, and to deliver, any stock, bonds, subscription rights, or other securities, or any beneficial interest therein, held or owned by the Company.



ARTICLE V

CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DRAFTS AND BANK ACCOUNTS

SECTION 1. Execution of Contracts: The Board of Directors, except as in these By-Laws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or
officers, agent, or agents, in the name of and on behalf of the Company to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument, and such
authority may be general or confined to specific instances; but, unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, or expressly authorized by these
By-Laws, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Company by any contract or engagement or to pledge its
credit or to render it liable pecuniarily in any amount for any purpose.

SECTION 2. Loans: No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Company, and no negotiable paper shall be issued in its name unless
specifically authorized by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. Checks, Drafts, etc.: All checks, drafts, and other orders for the payment of money out of the funds of the Company, and all
notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the Company, shall be signed on behalf of the Company in such manner as shall from time to time be
determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. Deposits: All funds of the Company not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Company in
such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

ARTICLE VI

STOCKS AND DIVIDENDS

SECTION 1. Shares of Stock:  Shares of stock of the Company shall be represented by certificates except to the extent that the Board of
Directors of the Company shall provide by resolution that some or all of any or all classes and series of the Company’s shares shall be
uncertificated shares, provided that such resolution shall not apply to shares represented by a certificate until such certificate is surrendered to the
Company. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, the rights and obligations of holders of uncertificated shares and the rights and
obligations of the holders of certificates representing shares of the same class and series shall be identical.

SECTION 2. Certificates For Shares:  To the extent that shares of stock of the Company are to be represented by certificates, the certificates
therefor shall be in such form as shall be approved by the Board of Directors. The certificates of stock shall be numbered in order of their issue,
shall be signed by the Chairman of the Board, the President or a Vice President, and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer or
an Assistant Treasurer. The signature of the officers upon a certificate may be facsimiles if the certificate is countersigned by a transfer agent or
registered by a registrar other than the Company itself or its employee. In case any officer who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been
placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Company with the same
effect as if he or she were an officer at the date of issue.



SECTION 3. Transfer of Stock: Transfers of stock of the Company shall be made only on the books of the Company by the holder thereof, or
by his or her duly authorized attorney, on surrender of the certificate or certificates for stock represented by certificates, properly endorsed, or in
the case of shares of stock not represented by certificates, on delivery to the Company of proper transfer instructions. Within a reasonable time
after the issuance or transfer of uncertificated stock, the Company shall send to the registered owner thereof a written notice containing the
information required to be set forth or stated on certificates pursuant to the Business Corporation Law of the State of New York. Every certificate
surrendered to the Company shall be marked “Canceled”, with the date of cancellation, and no new certificate shall be issued in exchange therefor
until the old certificate has been surrendered and canceled. A person in whose name stock of the Company stands on the books of the Company
shall be deemed the owner thereof as regards the Company; provided that, whenever any transfer of stock shall be made for collateral security,
and not absolutely, such fact, if known to the Secretary of the Company, or to its transfer agent shall be so expressed in the entry of the transfer.
No transfer of stock shall be valid as against the Company, or its shareholders for any purpose, until it shall have been entered in the stock records
of the Company as specified in these By-Laws by an entry showing from and to whom transferred.

SECTION 4. Transfer and Registry Agents: The Company may, from time to time, maintain one or more transfer offices or agencies and/or
registry offices at such place or places as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors; and the Board of Directors may, from
time to time, define the duties of such transfer agents and registrars and make such rules and regulations as it may deem expedient, not
inconsistent with these By-Laws, concerning the issue, transfer and registration of certificates for stock or uncertificated stock of the Company.

SECTION 5. Lost, Destroyed and Mutilated Certificates: The holder of any certificated stock of the Company shall immediately notify the
Company of any loss, destruction or mutilation of the certificate therefor. The Company may issue a new certificate or uncertificated stock in place
of the lost or destroyed certificate, but as a condition to such issue, the holder of such certificate must make satisfactory proof of the loss or
destruction thereof, and must give to the Company a bond of indemnity in form and amount and with one or more sureties satisfactory to the
Treasurer, the Secretary or any Assistant Treasurer or Assistant Secretary. Such bond of indemnity shall also name as obligee each of the transfer
agents and registrars for the stock the certificate for which has been lost or destroyed.

SECTION 6. Record Dates for Certain Purposes: The Board of Directors of the Company shall fix a day and hour not more than sixty days
preceding the date of any meeting of shareholders, or the date for payment of any cash or stock dividend, or the date for the allotment of any rights
of subscription, or the date when any change or conversion or exchange of capital stock shall go into effect, as a record date for the determination
of the shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, any such meeting and any adjournment thereof, or entitled to receive payment of any such
dividend, or entitled to receive any such allotment of rights of subscription, or entitled to exercise rights in respect of any such change, conversion
or exchange of capital stock, and in such case, such shareholders and only such shareholders as shall be shareholders of record on the day and
hour so fixed shall be entitled to such notice of, and to vote at, such meeting or any adjournment thereof, or to receive payment of such dividend,
or to receive such allotment of rights of subscription, or to exercise rights in connection with such change or conversion or exchange of capital
stock, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any stock on the books of the Company after such day and hour fixed as aforesaid.



SECTION 7. Dividends and Surplus: Subject to the limitations prescribed by law, the Board of Directors (1) may declare dividends on the
stock of the Company whenever and in such amounts as, in its opinion, the condition of the affairs of the Company shall render it advisable,
(2) may use and apply, in its discretion, any part or all of the surplus of the Company in purchasing or acquiring any of the shares of stock of the
Company, and (3) may set aside from time to time out of such surplus or net profits such sum or sums as it in its absolute discretion, may think
proper as a reserve fund to meet contingencies or for equalizing dividends, or for the purpose of maintaining or increasing the property or business
of the Company, or for any other purpose it may think conducive to the best interest of the Company.

ARTICLE VII

OFFICES AND BOOKS

SECTION 1. Offices: The Company shall maintain an office at such place in the County of Monroe, State of New York, as the Board of
Directors may determine. The Board of Directors may from time to time and at any time establish other offices of the Company or branches of its
business at whatever place or places seem to it expedient.

SECTION 2. Books and Records:

(a) There shall be kept at one or more offices of the Company (1) correct and complete books and records of account, (2) minutes of the
proceedings of the shareholders, Board of Directors and the committees of the Board, (3) a current list of the Directors and officers of the Company
and their residence addresses, and (4) a copy of these By-Laws.

(b) The stock records may be kept either at the office of the Company or at the office of its transfer agent or registrar in the State of New
York, if any, and shall contain the names and addresses of all shareholders, the number and class of shares held by each and the dates when they
respectively became the owners of record thereof.

ARTICLE VIII

GENERAL

SECTION 1. Seal: The corporate seal shall be in the form of a circle and shall bear the full name of the Company and the words and figures
“Incorporated 1906, Rochester, N. Y.”.

SECTION 2. Indemnification of Directors and Officers: Except to the extent expressly prohibited by law, the Company shall indemnify any
person, made or threatened to be made, a party in any civil or criminal action or proceeding, including an action or proceeding by or in the right of
the Company to procure a judgment in its favor or by or in the right of any other corporation of any type or kind, domestic or foreign, or any
partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, which any Director or officer of the Company served in any capacity at
the request of the Company, by reason of the fact that he or she, his or her testator or intestate is or was a Director or officer of the Company or
serves or served such other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, in any capacity, against
judgments, fines, penalties, amounts paid in settlement and reasonable expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with such
action or proceeding, or any appeal therein, provided that no such indemnification shall be required with respect to any settlement unless the
Company shall have given its prior approval thereto. Such indemnification shall include the right to be paid advances of any expenses incurred by
such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, consistent with the provisions of applicable law. In addition to the foregoing, the
Company is authorized to extend rights to indemnification and advancement of expenses to such persons by i) resolution of the shareholders, ii)
resolution of the Directors or iii) an agreement, to the extent not expressly prohibited by law.



ARTICLE IX

FISCAL YEAR

SECTION 1. Fiscal Year: The fiscal year of the Company shall end on the 31st day of December in each year.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS

SECTION 1. Amendments: By-Laws of the Company may be amended, repealed or adopted by a majority of the votes of the shares at the
time entitled to vote in the election of any Directors. If, at any meeting of shareholders, action is proposed to be taken to amend, repeal or adopt
By-Laws, the notice of such meeting shall include a brief statement or summary of the proposed action. The By-Laws may also be amended,
repealed or adopted by the Board of Directors, but any By-Law adopted by the Board may be amended or repealed by shareholders entitled to
vote thereon as hereinabove provided. If any By-Law regulating an impending election of Directors is adopted, amended or repealed by the Board
of Directors, there shall be set forth in the notice of the next meeting of shareholders for the election of Directors the By-Law so adopted, amended
or repealed, together with a concise statement of the changes made.



Exhibit 12

XEROX CORPORATION

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges, the ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends, as well as any deficiency of
earnings are determined using the following applicable factors:

Earnings available for fixed charges are calculated first, by determining the sum of: (a) income from continuing operations before income taxes;
(b) distributed equity income; (c) fixed charges, as defined below and (d) amortization of capitalized interest, if any. From this total, we subtract
capitalized interest, if any.

Fixed charges are calculated as the sum of (a) interest costs (both expensed and capitalized), (b) amortization of debt expense and discount or
premium relating to any indebtedness and (c) that portion of rental expense that is representative of the interest factor.

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
 

   
Three Months

Ended June 30,   
Six Months

Ended June 30,  
(in millions)   2008   2007   2008   2007  
Fixed charges:      
Interest expense   $ 144  $ 149  $ 278  $ 285 
Capitalized interest    3   —     5   —   
Portion of rental expense which represents interest factor    23   23   46   45 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total fixed charges   $ 170  $ 172  $ 329  $ 330 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Earnings available for fixed charges:      
Earnings   $ 274  $ 342  $ (216) $ 677 
Adjusted for: Undistributed equity in income of affiliated companies    (2)  (13)  (29)  (18)
Add: Fixed charges    170   172   329   330 
Less: Capitalized interest    (3)  —     (5)  —   

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total earnings available for fixed charges   $ 439  $ 501  $ 79  $ 989 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges    2.58   2.91   *   3.00 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

 
* Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were inadequate to cover fixed charges by $250.



Exhibit 31(a)

CEO CERTIFICATIONS

I, Anne M. Mulcahy, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Xerox Corporation;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

 

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

 
July 31, 2008

/s/ ANNE M. MULCAHY
Anne M. Mulcahy

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31(b)

CFO CERTIFICATIONS

I, Lawrence A. Zimmerman, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Xerox Corporation;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

 

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

 
July 31, 2008

/s/ LAWRENCE A. ZIMMERMAN
Lawrence A. Zimmerman
Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF CEO AND CFO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. § 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
§ 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Form 10-Q of Xerox Corporation, a New York corporation (the “Company”), for the quarter ending June 30, 2008, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Anne M. Mulcahy, Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Lawrence A. Zimmerman, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each
hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of his/her knowledge,
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

 
/s/ ANNE M. MULCAHY

Anne M. Mulcahy
Chief Executive Officer

July 31, 2008

/s/ LAWRENCE A. ZIMMERMAN
Lawrence A. Zimmerman

Chief Financial Officer
July 31, 2008

This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required
by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of § 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement required by § 906 has been provided to Xerox Corporation and will be retained by Xerox
Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


